FUJITSU Electronic Devices User's Manual

# F<sup>2</sup>MC-16LX STARTER KIT



# **USER'S MANUAL**

Downloaded from **Elcodis.com** electronic components distributor

## **Revision History**

Date	Description
Jun 27, 2005	Edition 1.0: Initial release

## Precautions

- The contents of this document are subject to change without notice.
- The general information of operation and samples of application circuits described in this document are mere examples of standard operation and use of semiconductor devices. They are not intended to guarantee the device operation in actual equipment. The customer who incorporates the operation or sample circuit described in this document in the customer's system should design the system on the customer's own responsibility. Fujitsu will not assume responsibility for damages resulting from the use of the information described in this document.
- The general information of operation, circuit diagrams, and other technical information described in this document are not intended to grant the customer any license for the intellectual property rights, such as patents and copyrights, and other rights held by Fujitsu or a third party. Also, the information is not intended to guarantee the customer to practice any intellectual property or other rights held by third parties. Fujitsu will not assume responsibility for infringement of any intellectual property or other rights of third parties arising from the use of the information or circuit diagrams.
- If any products described in this document represent goods or technologies subject to certain restrictions on export under the Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Control Law of Japan, the prior authorization by Japanese government according to the law is required for export of those products from Japan.

Copyright© 2005 FUJITSU LIMITED All rights reserved

## Contents

Preface		1
1	Setting Up of Starter Kit	2
1.1	Setting Up of Personal Computer	8
1.1.1	Installing of USB driver	9
1.1.2	Installing of integrated development environment "SOFTUNE"	
	(limited-function version)	
1.1.3	Installing of demonstration version (trial version) of ACCEMIC MDE	16
1.1.4	Setting up of evaluation board and connecting of board to the personal	
	computer	21
1.1.5	Starting and setting up of SOFTUNE	23
1.1.6	Starting and setting up of ACCEMIC MDE	
1.1.7	Terminating of ACCEMIC MDE	37
1.1.8	Terminating of SOFTUNE	
1.1.9	Board operation without ACCEMIC MDE	
2	"Let's try to turn on the LED!"	40
2.1	What is an LED?	40
2.2	How can the LED emit light?	41
2.3	How to turn on an LED by microcomputer	
2.4	How to create and execute a program to turn on the LED	44
2.4.1	Outline of program to be created	45
2.4.2	Creating and executing of program	45
2.5	How to create and execute a program to make the LED blinking	46
2.5.1	Outline of the program to be created	46
2.5.2	Creating and executing of program	47
3	"Let's try to control the LED by switch operation!"	49
3.1	How the microcomputer detects switch operation	49
3.2	How to create and execute a program to control LEDs by switch operation	51
3.2.1	Outline of program to be created	51
3.2.2	Creating and executing of program	
4	"Let's try to sound a buzzer!"	54
4.1	Devices used for buzzer	54

# FUJITSU

4.1.1	Crystalline characteristics of piezoelectric device	55
4.1.2	Piezoelectric characteristics	55
4.1.3	Principle of piezoelectric device	56
4.2	Microcomputer and piezoelectric buzzer	56
4.2.1	Self-excited and separately excited vibrations	57
4.2.2	Pulse wave generated by the microcomputer	57
4.3	How to sound the buzzer by PPG	57
4.3.1	Setting of L-level and H-level duration	58
4.3.2	PPG count clock	58
4.4	How to create and execute a program to sound the buzzer	58
4.4.1	Outline of the program to be created	59
4.4.2	Creating and executing of program	60
4.4.3	Changing the tone of a buzzer sound	62
5	"Let's try to control the LED by interrupt."	63
5.1	What is an interrupt?	63
5.2	How to detect a switch operation by interrupts	64
5.3	How to create and execute a program to control the LED by switch Input	
	operation	65
5.3.1	Outline of the program to be created	65
5.3.2	Creating and executing of program	67
6	"Let's blink the LED by using a timer interrupt."	69
6.1	What is a timer?	69
6.2	How to create and execute a program to control the LED blinking by using a	
	timer interrupt	70
6.2.1	Outline of the program to be created	70
6.2.2	Creation and execution of the program	72
7	"Let's use the A/D converter."	74
7.1	Analog and Digital	74
7.1.1	Outline of A/D converter	75
7.1.2	Scheme of volume tab	76
7.2	How to create and execute a program to display potental	76
7.2.1	Outline of program to be created	76
7.2.2	Creation and execution of the program	80
8	"Let's use the temperature sensor."	82
8.1	What is a temperature sensor?	82
8.2	How to detect temperatures by using "temperature sensor"	83

# FUĴĨTSU

8.3	How to create and execute a program to display temperature			
8.3.1	Outline of the program to be created			
8.3.2	Creation and execution of the program			
А	Appendix (Program Creation Procedure)	90		
A.1	Program Creation Procedure	90		
A.2	Program Building Procedure			
A.3	Program Execution Method	96		
В	Appendix (Method To Write/Read Values in Registers)	97		
B.1	About the Method To Write/Read Values in Registers	97		
С	Appendix (Method To Change the Include Path)			
C.1	About the Method To Change the Include Path			

## Preface

Thank you for your purchase of this Starter Kit.

The Starter Kit is intended for first-time users of microcomputers. The Starter Kit is designed in such a way that even beginners who have neither any actual experience with microcomputers nor any knowledge about what microcomputers do and how they are used can easily learn about microcomputers.

The Starter Kit includes a flash microcomputer and application development tools in order to enable a user with some knowledge of C language to modify sample programs and make the microcomputer actually perform various operations. This User's Manual gives detailed descriptions of how to control LED operations and buzzer sounds using the microcomputer. Even users with no knowledge about programming languages will be able to comfortably learn in an enjoyable way about microcomputers provided they have an introductory reference book on the C language handy.

This User's Manual has been established incorporating various recommendations of employees who had only been engaged in microcomputer-related work for one to three years and had had only little prior knowledge of microcomputers to begin with. Therefore, this User's Manual has been written specifically for questions that beginners of microcomputers usually have.

The Starter Kit can be effectively used as a tool for training about electronic circuits or as introductory education for embedded-software developers in classes at universities, technical colleges, and industrial high schools, as well as in new-employee education programs at corporations.

## 1 Setting Up of Starter Kit

Before setting up the Starter Kit, make sure that all the components and equipment listed in Table 1.1 are ready for use.

You should install the software on your personal computer before connecting the evaluation board to the personal computer.

The Starter Kit software is available in two versions: A CD-ROM version and a download version (the download version is not delivered on CD-ROM).

No.	Item	Qty	Specification	Remarks		
1	Board	1	Evaluation board equipped with Fujitsu F2MC-16LX Series	See Figure 1.1.		
			MB90F387 Microcomputer			
2	USB cable	1	USB	Accessory		
3	Installation	(1)	CD-ROM for installing SOFTUNE, ACCEMIC MDE, and	CD-ROM version		
	CD-ROM		sample programs	only		
			Related manuals are contained on the CD-ROM.	The download		
			•User's Manual: jouet_bleu_start_kit_manual_E.pdf	version has the		
			•USB Driver Installation Manual:	•USB Driver Installation Manual: same contents.		
			USB_driver_installation_manual_E.pdf	USB_driver_installation_manual_E.pdf		
			•MB90385 Series Hardware Manual: MB90385_HM_E.pdf			
			•MB90385 Series Data Sheet: MB90385_DS_E.pdf			
			•Set of SOFTUNE-related manuals:			
			SOFTUNE¥ MANUAL folder			
4	Personal	1	Personal computer on which Windows XP/Me/2000/98 can	To be prepared by		
	computer		operate normally	the user		
			USB2.0 port necessary			
			About 200 megabytes of free space necessary on the hard			
			disk			

#### Table 1.1 List of components and necessary equipment



Figure 1.1 Board

# FUJITSU



Figure 1.2 is a circuit diagram for the evaluation board.



Evaluation board circuit diagram

No	Item	Specification	Function	
(1)	Target device	MB90F387S	Main microcomputer (MB90F387S) on this board	
(2)	Targetdeviceexpansion pin	26PINX2	I/O expansion pin of the main microcomputer	
(3)	Reset switch	A push switch	Pressing this switch resets the main microcomputer.	
(4)	MODE switch	A slide switch	It switches the operation mode of the main microcomputer (MB90F387S).	
(5)	LED lamp	5 LED lamps (1 red and 4 green lamps)	LED lamps that are connected to the general-purpose I/O pin	
(6)	Test switch	2 push switches	Push switches for tests that are connected to the general-purpose I/O pin	
(7)	A/D test VR	Slide VR	A slide VR that is connected to the A/D converter input	
(8)	Temperature sensor	Thermistor	A temperature sensor that is connected to the A/D converter input	
(9)	Buzzer	Buzzer	Kyocera's separate-excitation type piezo alarm with a case (KBS-13DB-4P-2) It is connected to the PPG timer output pin.	
(10)	USB host connecter	MIN-B	A USB pin to connect the evaluation board and the host PC	
(11)	USB communication microcomputer	MB90F334	A USB communication microcomputer to connect the main microcomputer (MB90F387S) and the host PC It contains the USB communication firmware that has been developed by Interface Co., Ltd.	
(12)	2) USB communication microcomputer expansion pin 2 14-pins An expansion pin of the USB comm microcomputer		An expansion pin of the USB communication microcomputer	
(13)	Oscillator for main microcomputer CX-5FD (4MHz)		Kyocera's crystal oscillator (CX-5FD) It is an oscillator for the main microcomputer.	
(14)	Oscillator for USB communication CX-5FD(6MHz) microcomputer		Kyocera's crystal oscillator (CX-5FD) It is an oscillator for the USB communication microcomputer.	

### Table 1.2 Evaluation board parts

© Fujitsu

Figure 1.3 shows the system configuration.

Prepare a personal computer by yourself.



Figure 1.3

System configuration

Connect the board to the personal computer by using the accessory USB cable.

Supply power to the board by USB bus power system.

Be sure to connect the USB cable directly to the personal computer. Do not connect the USB cable via a USB hub.

Table 1.3 shows the assignment of functions to the pins of MB90F387 microcomputer.

Pin-No.	Function	Connection destination	Logic	Remarks
3	P50/AN0	VR	ANALOG	Division of power supply voltage: 0
				to 100%
4	P51/AN1	TEMP.SENSOR	ANALOG	1/2VCC@25°C
17	P25/INT5	SW1	Negative	L level when the switch is pressed
			logic	
19	P27/INT7	SW2	Negative	L level when the switch is pressed
			logic	
20	MD2	MODE		
21	MD1	PULL-UP		
22	MD0	MODE		
23	RST	RESET	Negative	On when the output is L level
			logic	
29	P10/IN0	LED1	Negative	On when the output is L level
			logic	
30	P11/IN1	LED2	Negative	On when the output is L level
			logic	
31	P12/IN2	LED3	Negative	On when the output is L level
			logic	
32	P13/IN3	LED4	Negative	On when the output is L level
			logic	
33	P14/IN4	LED5	Negative	On when the output is L level
			logic	
36	P17/PPG3	BUZZER	Rectangular	Initially at L level, C coupling, bias R
			wave	
37	P40/SIN1	RS232C		
39	P42/SOT1	RS232C		
42	P30/SOT0	PULL-DOWN(50 k $\Omega$ )		
43	P31/SCK0	PULL-DOWN(50 k $\Omega$ )		

Table 1.3 Function assignments to the pins of F<sup>2</sup>MC-16LX Series MB90F387 Microcomputer

© Fujitsu

#### 1.1 Setting Up of Personal Computer

This section describes how to install the software required to operate the Starter Kit on the personal computer. (Be sure to perform the software installation operation before connecting the board to the personal computer.)

Take the following steps to set up the personal computer:

- Installing the USB driver (See the separately provided "USB Driver Installation Manual.")
- ② Installing the integrated development environment "SOFTUNE" (limited-function version) (See Item 1.1.2.)
- ③ Installing the demonstration version of ACCEMIC MDE (See Item 1.1.3.)
- (4) Connecting the evaluation board to the personal computer (See Item 1.1.4.)
- (5) Starting and setting up SOFTUNE (See Item 1.1.5.)
- (6) Starting and setting up ACCEMIC MDS (See Item 1.1.6.)
- ⑦ Terminating ACCEMIC MDE (See Item 1.1.7.)
- (8) Terminating SOFTUNE (See Item 1.1.8.)

1.1.1 Installing of USB driver

Install the USB driver according to the content of the "USB Driver Installation Manual".

1.1.2 Installing of integrated development environment "SOFTUNE" (limited-function version)

Install SOFTUNE (limited-function version).

The limited-function version of SOFTUNE is subject to the limitation on the program size that can be debugged to 32 kilobytes. The limited-function version cannot be used to create a program over 32 kB.

- (1) Insert the CD-ROM into the CD-ROM drive. When using the download version, download the software for  $F^2MC-16LX$  Starter Kit (Jouet Bleu), and open the folder where the files are decompressed.
- ② Double-click on the Setup.exe icon in the ¥¥jouet\_bleu ¥SOFTUNE folder to start installation.



③ Follow the instructions on the screen to perform installation.



Click 'OK.'

F2MC-16 Family SOF	TUNE Professional Pack(Evaluation 🗙
	Welcome to Setup This program will install F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Professional Pack[Evaluation Version] on your computer. It is strongly recommended that you exit all Windows programs before running this Setup program.
	Cancel

Click 'Next >.'

F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Professional Pack(Evaluation.	×
**CAUTION** This product is the F2MC-16 Famly SOFTUNE (Evaluation version).	
	~
[Inquiry Office ]	
http://edevice.fujitsu.com/fj/CATALOG/COMMON/sales_e.html (World-wide)	
http://edevice.fujitsu.com/fj/CATALOG/COMMON/sales_j.html (Japan)	
<pre>///selipinizid </pre>	

Click 'Next >.'

F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Professional Pack(Evaluation 🗙
License Agreement
Please read the following license agreement carefully.
Press the PAGE DOW/N key to see the rest of the agreement.
Agreement on Use of Evaluation Software for Supporting FUJITSU Microprocessors
Notes to Users
Evaluation Software : Evaluation version of SOFTUNE Professional Pack
This Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "this Agreement") is made by and between users and FUJITSU Ltd. and prescribes the conditions for using Evaluation Software FUJITSU provides.
Do you accept all the terms of the preceding License Agreement? If you choose No, the setup will close. To install F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Professional Pack(Evaluation Version), you must accept this agreement.
< <u>B</u> ack <u>Y</u> es <u>N</u> o

If you accept the agreement, click 'Yes.'

(If you refuse the agreement, you cannot install SOFTUNE.)

F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Professional Pack(Evaluation 🗙
Version information
The version of the tools installed with this setup is shown below.
[Contents of this Professional Package (REV:300018-EVL)] 2005.05.09
This package is included the following softwares.
(1) F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Workbench : V30L32-EVL
(2) F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE C Compiler : V30L14-EVL
(3) SOFTUNE C Checker : V30L10
(4) F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Assembler Pack REV:300013-EVL fasm907s : V30L11
InstallShield
< <u>B</u> ack <u>Next&gt;</u> Cancel

Click 'Next >.'

F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Professional Pack(Evaluation 🗙
Choose Destination Select folder where Setup will install files.
Either the Fujitsu semiconductor support tool SOFTUNE is already installed or the environment information used prior to still remains.
Destination Directory:C:\Softune
Install the SOFTUNE Tools in the same folder. Install to the above folder when continuing the environment information.
Destination Folder C:\Softune
InstallShield <u>Kancel</u> Cancel

Click 'Next >.'

(Do not change the installation-destination folder here.)

F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Professio	nal Pack(Evaluation 🗙
Select Components Choose the components Setup will install.	1
Select the components you want to install, and clear the c install. SOFTUNE Workbench(Evaluation Version) SOFTUNE C Compiler(Evaluation Version) SOFTUNE Assembler Pack(Evaluation Version) SOFTUNE C Checker	components you do not want to Description Integrated Environment Development Platform Integrated Environment Development Platform for the F2MC-16 Family.
Space Required on C: 144288 K Space Available on C: 1656868 K InstallShield <u>Eac</u>	k <u>N</u> ext > Cancel

Click 'Next >.'

F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Prof	essiona	Il Pack(Eval	uation 🗙
Install information			1
Check the current setting before starting to copy Click the [BACK] button to make changes. Click	files. the [NEXT] b	outton to start copyi	ng files.
Destination Directory:C:\Softune SOFTUNE Workbench(Evaluation Version)			<u>^</u>
SOFTUNE Workbench : Install. SOFTUNE C Compiler(Evaluation Version) : Insta SOFTUNE Assembler Pack(Evaluation Version) SOFTUNE C Checker : No Install.	all. : Install.		
			T
InstallShield			
	< <u>B</u> ack	Next >	Cancel

Click 'Next >.'

F2MC-16 Family SOFTUNE Professional Pack(Evaluation 🗙
Setup Status
F2MC-16 Family SDFTUNE Professional Pack(Evaluation Version) Setup is performing the requested operations.
Installing: SOFTUNE Workbench
C:\Softune\BIN\Fs907s.exe
52%
InstallShield Cancel



Click 'Finish.'

The installation of SOFTUNE (limited-function version) is completed.

Proceed to the installation of the demonstration version of ACCEMIC MDE.

1.1.3 Installing of demonstration version (trial version) of ACCEMIC MDE Install the demonstration version (trial version) of ACCEMIC MDE.

The trial version of ACCEMIC MDE is subject to a limitation on the size of the program that can be debugged to 12 kB. The trial version cannot be used to create a program over 12 kB.

- (1) Insert the CD-ROM into the CD-ROM drive. When using the download version, download the software for  $F^2MC-16LX$  Starter Kit (jouet bleu), and open the folder where the files are decompressed.
- ② Double-click the MDE\_16LX\_DEMO\_V22ST\_STARTERKIT.exe icon in the ¥¥jouet\_bleu¥MDE\_16LX\_DEMO\_V22ST\_STARTERKIT folder to start installation.



③ Follow the instructions on the screen to perform the installation.



Click 'Next >.'

🛃 Accemic MDE Demo for MB90F387 Starter Kit 🛛 🔀
License Agreement
The following terms govern your use of the Accemic MDE software unless you have a separate written agreement with Accemic.
PLEASE READ THIS SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT ("LICENSE") CAREFULLY BEFORE USING THE SOFTWARE. BY USING THE SOFTWARE, YOU ARE AGREEING TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS LICENSE. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS LICENSE, DO NOT USE THE ACCEMIC SOFTWARE.
1. License. The software, documentation and any fonts accompanying this License whether on disk, in read only memory, on any other media or in any other form (the "Accemic Software")
Do you accept all the terms of the preceding license agreement? If so, click on the Yes push button. If you select No, Setup will close.
Wise Installation Wizard
<u>Yes</u> <u>N</u> o

If you accept the agreement, click 'Yes.'

(If you refuse the agreement, you cannot install ACCEMIC MDE.)

😤 Accemic MDE Demo for MB90F387 Starter Kit 🛛 🔀
Registration Information
This software has already been installed by the following person. If you are not licensed to use this software you may not install this software onto your computer.
TEMP FUJITSU
Wise Installation Wizard

Click 'Next >.'



Click 'Next >.'

(Do not change the installation-destination folder here.)

🚝 Accemic MDE Demo for MB90F387 Starter Kit	×
Select Program Manager Group	
Enter the name of the Program Manager group to add Accemic MDE Demo for MB90F387 Starter Kit icons to:	
Accemic MDE 2	
Accemic MDE 2 Adobe ATLAS V10.0 CDView V8 FFFTP FUJITSU FLASH MCU Programmer JTrim Lhaplus Microsoft Office OAK V8	
Wise Installation Wizard < <u>B</u> ack <u>Next</u> Canc	el

Click 'Next >.'



🕰 Accemic MDE Demo for MB90F387 Starter Kit 🛛 🔀				
Start Installation				
You are now ready to install Accemic MDE Demo for MB90F387 Starter Kit.				
Press the Next button to begin the installation or the Back button to reenter the installation information.				
Wise Installation Wizard <a><u>Back</u></a> Cancel				

Click 'Next >.'

Accemic MDE Demo for MB90F387 Starter Kit	
Installing	I all a construction of the second se
Current File	
Copying file: C:\Program Files\AccemicMDE2_2SK\Samples\16LX\Lib\Rtosmd.lib	
All Files	
Time Remaining 0 minutes 12 seconds	
Wise Installation WizardR	
< <u>B</u> ack. <u>N</u> ext >	Cancel

The installation is executed.



When the installation is completed, click 'Finish >.'

Installation of the demonstration version of ACCEMIC MDE is completed.

Proceed to the setup of the evaluation board and its connection to the personal computer.

1.1.4 Setting up of evaluation board and connecting of board to the personal computerAfter the installation of SOFTUNE and ACCEMIC MDE, perform switch settingon the evaluation board and connect the board to the personal computer.

On the evaluation board, set the MODE selector to **PROG**.



MODE selector	Operation mode			
PROG	Flash memory serial write mode			
	$\rightarrow$ Used to write a program to the microcomputer			
RUN	Single chip mode			
	$\rightarrow$ Used to actually run the program written to the microcomputer			

Confirm that the MODE selector is set to **PROG**.

Next, perform the cable connection.

Connect the USB port of the evaluation board to a USB port of the personal computer using the accessory USB cable. Do not connect the USB cable via a USB hub, but connect it directly between the board and personal computer.

Connect the USB cable to a USB port of the personal computer. For the location of USB port, refer to the manual for the personal computer.



The power of the evaluation board is supplied from the USB power supply (USB bus power).

Figure 1.4 Connection of the evaluation board and personal computer

- 1.1.5 Starting and setting up of SOFTUNE
  - Preparation Before the operation described below, copy the sample programs to the hard disk of the personal computer.

Uncompress the Fujitsu\_starter\_kit.zip file included in the CD-ROM or among the downloaded files in an arbitrary directory.

Start SOFTUNE (limited-function version).

From the Start menu of Windows, select Programs (P) and Softune V3, in this order, and then click on FFMC-16 Family Softune Workbench (trial version) to start.

SOFTUNE Workbench	
Bie Edit View Broject Debug Betup Window Help	
<u> </u>	
y y	
HEREE N NO DEC	
AA AA AA AA AA	
Statad	

Open the workspace file for sample programs.

🐮 SC	)FTU	JNE W	√orkbe	nch	
<u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	<u>P</u> roject	<u>D</u> ebug	<u>_ S</u> e
<u>N</u> ev	N				
<u>О</u> ре	∋n			Ctrl+O	
<u>C</u> lo	se				
Оре	en Wo	rkspac	e		馵
Clo	se <u>W</u> a	orkspac	e		3
Sav	/e			Ctrl+S	
Sav	/e <u>A</u> s.				
Sav	∕e A∥				
<u>P</u> rir	rt				
R <u>e</u> d	cent T	ext File		•	
Red	cen <u>t</u> V	/orkspa	ace File	+	
E <u>x</u> it					
					_

Select Open Workspace (R)... from the File (F) menu.

Open Wo	rkspace	×
Look jn: 🔁	🛛 Fujitsu_starter_kit 💿 🖻 📶 🕅	
DBuzzer Input Interrupt Led Sample Sensor	☐ special ☐ timer ☐ Volume ◙ Start_kit.wsp	
File <u>n</u> ame:	<u>Open</u>	
Files of <u>type</u> :	Workspace File(*.wsp) Cancel	

In this step, the workspace file to execute a sample program is opened. (No sample program is executed when the workspace file is opened.)

Open the Start\_kit.wsp file located in the Fujitsu\_starter\_kit folder.

🧱 SOFTUNE Workbench - Start_kit		
<u>File Edit View Project Debug S</u>	≧etup <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	
1999年11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11		
Sample Sample		
<ul> <li>Workspace'Start kit'</li> <li>LED.abs - "LED.prj" [Debug</li> <li>Input.abs - "Input.prj" [Deb</li> <li>Buzzer.abs - "Buzzer.prj" [I</li> <li>Volume.abs - "Volume.prj"</li> <li>The timer.abs - "timer.prj" [Deb</li> <li>Interrupt.abs - "Interrupt.prj"</li> <li>sensor.abs - "sensor.prj" [I</li> <li>Sensor.abs - "sensor.prj" [I</li> <li>Sample.abs - "Sample.p</li> <li>Include Files</li> <li>Debug</li> </ul>		

The project window displays the opened workspace.

Make the settings for the active project.

Multiple projects can be stored in one workspace file.

The sample programs include already created projects, including LED.prj, Input.prj, and Buzzer.prj.

Since program debugging is performed in units of projects, you should specify the project to be debugged as an active project.



Select a project to be debugged and click the right mouse button.

A submenu appears. Select Set active project from the submenu. The project name in the list is displayed in **boldface**, and debugging of the project is enabled.

#### 1.1.6 Starting and setting up of ACCEMIC MDE

Use the Start\_kit.wsp workspace file opened in the previous step to start ACCEMIC MDE.

Confirm that the current active project of SOFTUNE is **special.prj**. Select Build (B) from the Project (P) menu to execute a build operation.



When the build operation is executed, the output screen of SOFTUNE displays the messages below.

Build operation started
Configuration: special.prj - Debug
start905s.asm
monitor16LX.asm
_FFMC16.C
PPG_01_int.c
Linked
*** I0312L: 0 warnings were output after S.C.F check.
D: ¥jouet_bleu¥fujitsu_starter_kit¥special¥Debug¥ABS¥apecial.abs
No error was found. Confirm that no error was found.

If an **error** is detected as shown below in the build operation, perform the software installation again from the initial step as described in Item 1.1.2. When reinstalling the software, **be sure not to change the installation directory that is displayed on the screen**.

	Build operation started	
	Configuration: special.prj - Debug	
	start905s.asm	
	monitor16LX.asm	
	_FFMC16.C	
	*** D:¥jouet_bleu¥Fujitsu_start_kit¥special¥_ffmc16.c(9) E4038P: #include: File "_ffmc16.h" is	
	not found.	
	main.c	
	*** D:¥jouet_bleu¥Fujitsu_start_kit¥special¥main.c(17) E4038P: #include: File "_ffmc16.h" is not	
	found.	
	monitor16LX.asm	
$\left( \right)$	Error was found. Example of error detection	
	N N	

Subsequently, ACCEMIC MDE starts automatically.

Input the COM port number that is confirmed after the USB driver is installed.

Se	etup Serial Port		×
	Port C COM 1 C COM 2 C COM 3 C COM 4	С СОМ 5 С СОМ 6 С СОМ 7 С СОМ 8	
l	OK )	Cancel	

If you need to correct settings in the 'Select Processor dialog box' because you made an incorrect "Type" setting or for other reasons, select 'Communication...' from the Preferences menu to display the 'Select Processor dialog box.'



If the COM port number is unknown, use the following procedure to check the COM port number to which the board is connected.

#### [Procedure for checking the COM port number]

First, click the right side of a mouse on the "My Computer", and click on "Property(R)."



When the Property window of the system appears, click "Hardware," and then click "Device manager (D)."

rstem Properties	? ×
General Network Identification Hardware User Profiles Advanced	
Hardware Wizard	
The Hardware wizard helps you install, uninstall, repair, unplug, eject, and configure your hardware.	
Hardware Wizard	
Device Manager	
The Device Manager lists all the hardware devices installed on your computer. Use the Device Manager to change the properties of any device.	
Driver <u>S</u> igning	]
Hardware Profiles	
Hardware profiles provide a way for you to set up and store different hardware configurations.	
Hardware <u>P</u> rofiles	
OK Cancel App	ly.

When the Device manager window appears, check the indication of "INTERFACE USB to RS232C Converter Virtual COM Port(COMx)" under the "Port (COM and LPT." The "(COMx)" part indicates the COM port number.

🚇 Device Manager	
_ <u>A</u> ction <u>Vi</u> ew _ J ← →   🖮 📧   😭   😫   😹 😹 🗙	
庄 🖅 Disk drives	
😟 🖳 🖳 Display adapters	
🗄 🎰 🎒 DVD/CD-ROM drives	
🗄 🖶 🔁 Floppy disk controllers	
E Floppy disk drives	
E 🚭 IDE ATA/ATAPI controllers	
🕀 🥰 Keyboards	
Mice and other pointing devices	
Honitors     Honitors	
Network adapters	
Non-Plug and Play Drivers	
Ports (COM & LPT)	
Communications Port (COM2)	
TINTEREACE LISE to PS232C Converter Virtual COM Part (COM2)	N
Printer Port (I DT1)	*
E C SCSI and BAID controllers	
The Sound, video and game controllers	
+ Storage volumes	
E System devices	
🗄 🥳 Universal Serial Bus controllers	-
· ·	

[Note] If the assigned COM port number is 5 or higher, ACCEMIC MDE cannot be used. Change the PC settings so that 4 or lower number is assigned to the port.



Click 'OK.' (With this trial version, the OK input will take effect 10 seconds later.) Make the settings of the target microcomputer.

When you use ACCEMIC MDE for the first time, you should download the monitor debugger kernel. (You need not make these settings again unless you change the target microcomputer.)

Select Processor	×
Manufacturer Fujitsu	<u>N</u> ext >
Type MB90F387	<u>C</u> ancel

Here, select **Fujitsu** for "Manufacturer" and **MB90F387** for "Type," and then click 'Next >.'

If you need to correct settings in the 'Select Processor dialog box' because you made an incorrect "Type" setting or for other reasons, select 'Processor...' from the Preferences menu to display the 'Select Processor dialog box.'




Setup Processor		X
Package	Clock	мц <sub>э</sub> , <u>40</u>
FPT-48P-M26		
	PLL f	actor: Not used
Boot Configuration	External Bus	Communication
Mode Line	Not used	UART
Use None 💌	C 8 Bit data bus	Number: 0
	C 16 Bit data bus	Use external clock(SCK)
Level Low	Beset Line	Ext. freq: 0.0 kHz
Boot Pins		Tolerance: 5.0 %
P31=HIGH		
P30=HIGH	Level Low	Speed 9600 Bits/s
HHN Download Kernel	ОК	Cancel Help

When the target microcomputer is the MB90F387, select **FPT-48P-M26** for "Package" and **Not used** for "PLL factor." Do not change other parameters from their defaults.

[Note] Use either "Not used" or "1" for the PLL setting. Note that the operations are not guaranteed if any other value is entered.

After the setup, press "Download Kernel."

When ACCEMIC MDE is used for the first time, it is required to download the monitor debugger kernel only once.

When the following information is displayed, reconfirm that the MODE selector is set to the "**PROG**" side, **press the RESET switch on the board, then press** "**OK**."



When you click OK after pressing the 'RESET' switch on the board, downloading starts.

If the above switch operation is not performed in correct order, ACCEMIC MDE will not start. If you fail to perform switch operation correctly, resume the operation from the step described in Item 1.1.6.



When downloading ends, the next information item appears. With the next Information dialog box displayed, do not click OK immediately but perform necessary switch operations on the board.



When this dialog box is displayed, do not click OK immediately, but perform switch operations on the board.





When you click 'OK' in the Information dialog box after pressing the 'RESET' switch on the board, ACCEMIC MDE starts.

🥺 Accemic MDE	Demo - special.abs							_ 8 >
File Start Vie	w Tools Preferences He	p						
별 😕 🧶 🤘	🖉 🔿 🕨 🔒 🔒 🔒	ً 🕹 🕯	🔐 🦠 🔱 🍼 🏇 🔌 - 🙉 🖪					
📒 I/Os	🖶 Locals 🛛 🖶 Globals	mair	.c start905s.asm ad_int.c					
1 14. 📀 🗍			/www.www.www.www.www.www.	****	*****			
ADCB	0 (0x0000)	all –	g dal paraneter	,	adadadada			
ADCS	512 (0x0200)	311	struct bit					
ADER	255 (0xFF)							
AMRO	0 (0x00000000)		unsigned int LED_dir: 1; unsigned int LED_interval: 2	//for runing direction of /	un de la composición de la composicinde la composición de la composición de la composición de la compo			
AMB1	0 (0x00000000)		unsigned int buzzer: 1;	//for buzzer on or off	<u> </u>			
AMSB	0 (0x0000)		}flag					
BAP0		-111	long TMR0xF424;	//for aðjusting reload tin	w carter			
		=	int LED-0.01;	//for LED shift				
El Source Files	Functions			*****	*****			
- IEdeth		- 11	narn rowne	****	anananan			
fmc16.c			void main(void)					
ffmc16.b		1.						
io prI01.c			EU; 	//enable interrupt for Acco	anic .			
io prl23.c		11.	/*************************************	**********	****			
io tmr.c			enable i terrupt					
📕 _mb90385.h			******	******	ererererererererererererererererererer			
🖪 _r90385.h			flar IED dir=0x0	/AFD shift direction 0 for	· left 1 for vielt			
🖪 _standby.h			flag LED interval=0x0t	//initial interval level:0	->1s: 1->0 5s: 2->0 25 3	⊢≻return	to Is	
🚺 ad_initial.c		11.	flag buzzer=0x00	//O stop buzzer; 1 start bu	zer			-
🖸 ad_int.c		Ľ.		*****************************	*****			
🖪 cpu_16lx.h								- 0
🖸 ext_int.c		Add	ress: 00FF025D				Register Window	
🚺 ext_int_initial.c		• =>	00FF025D:0800	LINK	#00H		AH 0000	
📔 extern.h		•	00FF025F:2540	OR	CCR,#40H		AL 038E	R RW RL
🚺 main.c		•	00FF0261:1A07	MOV	ILM, #07H		DDP 01	<u>wn</u> 0000
📕 monitor.h		•	00FF0263:6C580001	CLRB	0100H:0		ADB FF	W1 048C
monitor16LX.as	sm	•	00FF0267:42F9	MOV	A,#F9H		USB 00	W/2 EFEF
ppg_U1_int.c		•	00FF0269:759F0001	AND	0100H, A		USP 038C	M/3 047E
ppg_on_off.c		•	00FF026D:6C5B0001	CLRB	0100H:3		SSB 00	W4 0000
C ppg_timer_initia	alc Note	•	00FF0271:54011E	NOV	IO:01H,#1EH		SSP 028E	WYS COFF
reload_timer_in	inal C	•	00FF0274:54111F	MOV	IO:11H,#1FH		PC 025D B	AAZ FORF
I reload_timer_in	ILC	•	00FF0277:644902	CALL	0249H		-PS	
HI startauos.asm		•	00FF027A: 64D202	CALL	02D2H		- ON OVO	I C 1 7 -
		•	00FF027D: 64F302	CALL	02F3H	i 4	、般 😤 🔂 🖏	KANA P 0 V
State: Breaked	INT-Level: Disable							
🏨 スタート 🔢 🤞	) 🖄 🗹 🔰 🖄 受信 I		קרבבדאו אוקבבדאו 🛛	📾]start_kit_ma 🛛 🔼 Adobe Ac	ro 🔇 Accemic		<b>2</b>	▶ <b>∕ €</b> ] 20:52

The ACCEMIC MDE window opens.

Execute the program of the sample project "special.prj."

Select "Run" under "Start."

The LEDs 1 to 5 on the board are shifted leftward respectively at one-second interval.

🧟 Ye	cemic l	MDE De	mo - MB	390480.	abs	
File	Start	View	Tools	Prefer	rences He	lp
<sup>노</sup> 눈	🔊 Dis	sconnec	:t		66	SH
E L	So	ftware l	Reset	F5	àlobals	m
1	C Re	start		F10		
ADCF	🕨 Ru	n		F9		
ADC:	🔒 Ste	ep Over		F8		11
ADEF	👌 Ste	ep Into		F7		11
ARSF	👌 Re	turn fro	m Gall	F6		11
± 8,4	🔐 As	sembler	r Steppin	e		11
⊞ BÁ	P1				•	11
± BA	P10					
± BA	P11					



When the program is executed, the LEDs 1 to 5 on the evaluation board are shifted leftward respectively at one-second interval.

It also has the functions listed in Table 1-4.

Switch control	Board operation			
SW1 normal	The LED shift direction is changed.			
press	Shift direction: Left shift→Right shift→Left shift→Right shift			
SW2 normal	The shift speed is changed.			
press	Shift speed: 1 second $\rightarrow 0.5$ seconds $\rightarrow 0.25$ seconds $\rightarrow 0.125$			
	seconds→1 seconds			
SW1 long press	It controls on and off of the buzzer.			
Volume	It can adjust the volume of the buzzer while buzzer sounds.			
adjustment				

# Table 1-4 Board operations at the special.prj execution





Stop the program as follows:

Select Stop from the Start menu to stop the sample program.

🭳 Ac	cemic N	1DE De	emo - MB	390480.	abs	
File	Start	View	Tools	Prefer	rences H	elp
우성	🔊 🛃 Dis	connec	et		66	Gi   •
€ L	So	ftware	Reset	F5	àlobals	ma
1	C Re	start		F10		
ADCF	Sto	эр		F9		111
ADC	🔒 Ste	ep Over		F8		
ADEF	👌 Ste	ep Into		F7		111
ARSE	👌 Re	turn fro	om Gall	F6		
± BA	ASH AS	semble	r Steppir	16		
± BA	P1					
+ BA	P10					

Reset the program as follows:

Select Restart from the Start menu. The program is reset.

😪 Accemic MDE Demo - Lያ•						
File	Start	View	Tools	Prefer	ences Help	
按b	🔊 🛃	sconnec	t		👌 👌 🚮	
E L	So	ftware f	Reset	F5	Globals	
1	C Re	start		F10		
ADCF	🕨 Ru	n		F9		
ADCS	🔂 Ste	ep Over		F8		
ADEF	👌 Ste	ep Into		F7		
	👌 Re	turn fro	m Gall	F6	🔟	
	As As	sembler	Steppi	ng		
🖹 S	ource F	iles		Functio	ons	

# 1.1.7 Terminating of ACCEMIC MDE

To terminate ACCEMIC MDE, select 'Exit' from the File menu.

🙊 Accemic MDE Demo - Rel%•						
Tools Pre						
C ) (						
128 (0x80)						

The ACCEMIC MDE window closes.

1.1.8 Terminating of SOFTUNE

After terminating ACCEMIC MDE, terminate SOFTUNE as follows: Select 'Exit' from the File menu to terminate SOFTUNE.



The SOFTUNE window closes.

Described above are the basic operation procedures using sample programs to start debugging.

#### 1.1.9 Board operation without ACCEMIC MDE

This Starter Kit can operate the generated program on the board without using ACCEMIC MDE. The procedure is described below.

First, start the program to be operated on ACCEMIC MDE. The procedure for operation is described in Item 1.1.6. Confirm that the program runs on ACCEMIC MDE normally. Then, stop the program, and select "Automatic Start" under "Tools" in the menu. Then, the following window appears.

🧟 Accemic MDE Dei	mo - special.abs	
File Start View	Tools Preferences Help	
끈 딸 🧶 🕅 🖻	Erase Flash	🛛 🗞 🖕 🍼 🦠 🭇
🖶 I/Os 🛛 🖶	Automatic Start	start905s.asm   ext_int
∄ <sup>‡</sup> t <sub>±</sub> ⊘	Kernel Access Authorization	
± dmy_00	Test Access Authorization	*******
± dmy_06_10     ■ dmy_10_10	Run User Function	unct bit {
E any_16_1A	<b>_</b>	unsigned int LED

Then, put a checkmark on "Automatic start after reset," and press "OK."

get Information		
Source file:	c:\kongou\mae\soft\16b	\/fujitsu_starter_kit\special\debug
Startaddress: Date of creation:	00FF0000 2005/06/15 16:55:44	Automatic start after reset
	ОК	Help

It starts erasing the Flash memory and writing the program. It takes several tens of seconds to complete the writing. Wait for a while. When the program writing ends, the progress bar disappears.

ľ	arget Information					×
-	-Current Application Source file:	c:\kongou\mae\so	oft\16bx\fujitsu	_starter_kit\↑p	ecial\debug	
	Startaddress: Rea	ding			t after reset authorization	
		ОК	<u>H</u> ep			<sup></sup> 2−>0 25 3−>return t
.ddres	x 00FF025D					
⇒0	0FF025D:0800			LINK	#00H	
0	0FF025F:2540			OR	CCR, #	40H

After the writing ends, stop ACCEMIC MDE and SFTUNE. Then, press the "RESET" button on the board while the USB cable is connected. The same operations as confirmed on ACCEMIC MDE are available.

Described above are the basic operation procedures by using the sample programs to start debugging.

Next, let's try to control LED lighting!

# 2 "Let's try to turn on the LED!"

LEDs appear everywhere in our everyday lives -- for example, the LEDs indicating the power-on status of a laptop personal computer, digital camera, washing machine, air conditioner, or rice cooker, the LEDs display indicating train departure times at a railroad station, and in traffic signals using LEDs, which have now become widespread. This chapter explains how to control the port output of the microcomputer to turn on an LED on the board.

#### 2.1 What is an LED?

A light-emitting diode (LED) is a semiconductor device that emits light when an electric current passes through it. The LED is represented by the symbol as shown in Figure 2.1. An LED has two electrodes: anode and cathode. When a voltage is applied across the LED so that the anode is at a positive potential with respect to the cathode, a current flows and the LED emits light. In the circuit shown in Figure 2.1, the LED goes on (emits light) when the switch (SW) is turned on and goes off when the switch is turned off. The brightness of the LED is controlled through the adjustment of flowing current by changing the resistance. As the current becomes larger, the emitted light becomes brighter. An LED can emit light in red, orange, yellow, green, or blue. Since the three primary colors (blue, green, and red) of light can be produced by combinations of the five colors, a full-color can be displayed by LEDs.



Figure 2.1 LED

Compared with an incandescent lamp, the LED has lower power consumption, longer operating life, and shorter response time. So, the LED is used in lighting equipment, backlight for liquid-crystal display monitor, traffic signals, tail lamps of cars, and displays. The board has red of LED3 and green of LEDs1, 2, 4, and 5 as shown in Figure 2.2.



Figure 2.2 LEDs mounted on the board

### 2.2 How can the LED emit light?

The LED has a pn-junction structure, which is the most fundamental structure of semiconductor devices. As shown in Figure 2.3, the pn-junction structure consists of a p-type semiconductor containing many electron holes and an n-type semiconductor containing many electrons that are joined to each other.



Figure 2.3 pn-junction structure

When a voltage is applied across the pn-junction structure so that the n-type semiconductor is at a negative potential with respect to the p-type semiconductor, electrons move from the n-type semiconductor to the p-type semiconductor , electron holes move in the reverse direction, and thereby a current flows. Then, some of electron holes and electrons collide with each other and are combined together. When an electron hole and an electron are combined together, they lose their energy partially, and the lost energy is emitted in the form of light. The color of emitted light depends on the material of the semiconductor. Table 2.1 shows examples of semiconductor materials and corresponding colors of emitted light.

Semiconductor material	Color of emitted light
ZnCdSe	Blue
ZnTeSe	Green
AlGaAs	Red

Table 2.1 Examples of semiconductor materials and colors of emitted light

#### 2.3 How to turn on an LED by microcomputer

Figure 2.1 showed an example of circuit in which an LED is turned on and off by turning on and off a switch. This section explains how to control the switch using a microcomputer.Figure 2.4shows the connection of LEDs to the microcomputer on the board. Figure 2.5 shows a conceptual diagram of the connection. In the case of (a) in Figure 2.5, the signal output from pin P10 is at the high level. Therefore, no current flows through the LED and the LED is off. In the case of (b) in Figure 2.5, the signal output from pin P10 is at the low level. Therefore, a current flows through the LED, and the LED goes on. The switch in the microcomputer can be operated by a program that controls the microcomputer.



Figure 2.4 Actual circuit diagram



Figure 2.5 Example of circuit to turn on/off an LED (with a conceptual diagram of the internal circuit of microcomputer)

The output settings of pins P10 to P14 are controlled by using the internal registers of the microcomputer. The pins P10 to P14 are controlled by the PDR1 and DDR1 registers as shown in Figure 2.6. To use a port for output, write the value (0 [low] or 1 [high]) to be output to the PDR1 register bit corresponding to the pin, and 1 to the DDR1 register bit corresponding to the pin.

Registers are the memory areas to control microcomputer operation and retain microcomputer operation status. Writing data to, and reading data from registers enables you to control the CPU and peripheral functions of the microcomputer. Here, the term peripheral functions means the functions of the I-O ports, timers, and A/D converter incorporated in the microcomputer.

bit 7 6 PDR1 register (IO_PDR1.byte) Pin name P17 P16 I bit 7 6	5       4       3       2       1       0       - For inprovide action of eaction of eaction pin: 0 [         P15       P14       P13       P12       P11       P10       - For our of eaction of eaction pin: 0 [         5       4       3       2       1       0	but setting, this register is used to check the input level in pin (value read from the bit corresponding to each (low-level input] or 1 [high-level input]). tput setting, this register is used to set the output level in pin (value written to the bit corresponding to each low-level output] or 1 [high-level output]).
DDR1 register (IO_DDR1.byte) Pin name P17 P16 I Example of P10 PDR1 bit0	- This r used     - This	egister is used to specify whether each port (pin) is for input or output (value written to the bit ponding to each pin: 0 [input] or 1 [output]). Output setting (DDR1 bit0 = 1) When 0 is written → Low-level output When 1 is written → High-level output

Figure 2.6 Explanation of registers to control the output from P10 to P14

© Fujitsu

The internal switch of microcomputer as shown in Figure 2.5 actually consists of a p-channel type transistor and an n-channel type transistor as shown in Figure 2.7. The pin outputs a low-level signal when the n-channel type transistor is in the on state; the pin outputs a high-level signal when the p-channel type transistor is in the on state. You can switch the output level of each port by setting the relevant value in the PDR1 register of the microcomputer. In the example shown in Figure 2.7, '0' is written to the bit 0 of PDR1to set pin P10 for low-level output, and '1' is written to the bit 1 of PDR1 to set pin P11 for high-level output. With these settings, LED0 is turned on, and LED1 is turned off.



Figure 2.7 LED on/off control by rewriting the PDR1 register (with a conceptual diagram of the internal circuit of microcomputer)

On the board, the LEDs are connected to pins P10 to P14. Therefore, the five pins are set to the output mode for controlling the LEDs. When the microcomputer is reset, all bits of DDR are reset to 0 (initial value), which means the ports are set to the input mode. In this status, to use a pin as an output port, be sure to write '1' to the bit corresponding to the pin.

#### 2.4 How to create and execute a program to turn on the LED

This section explain how to create a program that actually controls a microcomputer pin to turn on an LED.

#### 2.4.1 Outline of program to be created

Here, you will create a program that outputs a low-level signal from pin P14 of the microcomputer to turn on LED5. Figure 2.8 shows the flow of the program. In the flow, a value is set in the PDR1 register first, and then output setting is made using the DDR1 register. For port output, be sure to set the output level in the PDR1 register before the output setting using the DDR1 register. The setting operation should be performed in this order because the initial value that is applied after the microcomputer is reset is not defined for the PDR1 register (to set the output level).



Figure 2.8 Flow of the program to turn on the LED

#### 2.4.2 Creating and executing of program

Let us now create the actual program. According to the procedure described in Appendix A.1, open the source file "main.c" stored in "sample.prj", and input the program portion enclosed by dotted line in Figure 2.9. Use the files other than "main.c" without modification. After the input of the program, build the program according to the procedure described in Appendix A.2. If an error message is output, check that the content of the input program is exactly the same as the description shown in Figure 2.9. When the build operation ends successfully, ACCEMIC MDE starts automatically.

After the ACCEMIC MDE window appears, execute the program and check its operation. For how to execute the program, see Appendix B.1. While the program is executed, you can see that LED5 goes on on the board.



Figure 2.9 Program to turn on the LED

Descriptions "IO\_XXX.byte" and "IO\_YYY.bit" included in the above program code are the convenient formats of description defined in the I-O header file. For further information, see Appendix B.1.

- 2.5 How to create and execute a program to make the LED blinking This section explains how to create a program that makes the LED be blinking.
  - 2.5.1 Outline of the program to be created

Here, you will create a program that switches the output from pin P14 of the microcomputer between the low and high levels repeatedly to make LED5 turn on and off repeatedly. While 0 and 1 are written alternately to the bit 4 of the PDR1 register , LED5 is blinking as shown below.



Figure 2.10 shows the flow of the program. The only difference of this program from the LED lighting program shown in Figure 2.8 is that this program has additional steps of LED off and LED on/off time count processing. The LED on/off time count processing is described by the for-statement as shown below to enable you to visually confirm the on/off operation of the LED. You can vary the on/off time by changing the currently set value (30000).

- On/off time count for(i=0;i<30000;i++);



Figure 2.10 Flow of the program to make LED5 blinking

#### 2.5.2 Creating and executing of program

Let us now create the actual program. According to the procedure described in Appendix A.1, open the source file "main.c" stored in "sample.prj", and input the program portion (after "while (1)") enclosed by dotted line in Figure 2.11 to the LED lighting program created in Section 2.4.2. Use the files other than "main.c" without modification. After the input of the program, build the program according to the procedure described in Appendix A.2. If an error message is output, check that the content of the input program is exactly the same as the description shown in Figure 2.11. When the build operation ends successfully, ACCEMIC MDE starts automatically.

After the ACCEMIC MDE window appears, execute the program and check its operation. For how to execute the program, see Appendix A.3. While the program is executed, you can see that LED5 goes on on the board.



Figure 2.11 Program to make LED5 blinking

# 3 "Let's try to control the LED by switch operation!"

This chapter explains how to control LEDs by operating the push switches on the board and how to create a program that controls LEDs based on switch operations.

### 3.1 How the microcomputer detects switch operation

The board of the Starter Kit has two switches (SWs) as shown in Figure 3.1. The switches are connected to pins P25 and P27 of the microcomputer. The following explains how the microcomputer detects your operation of these switches.



Figure 3.1 Switches on the Starter Kit board

Figure 3.2 shows a conceptual diagram of the connection of SW1 on the board. On the board, SW1 is connected to pin P25, which is a general I-O port of the microcomputer. While SW1 is released (off state), the voltage applied to pin P25 of the microcomputer is Vcc (5 V), which is the high-level input. When SW1 is pressed (on state), the input to pin P25 becomes the low level because the voltage at pin P25 becomes GND. Thus, the input status at pin P25 of the microcomputer changes depending on the state of SW1. The same mechanism applies to SW2, except that SW2 is connected to pin P27, which is a general I-O port of the microcomputer. Therefore, the input status at pin P27 changes when SW2 is operated.



Figure 3.2 Connection of SW1 to microcomputer pin (conceptual diagram)

The change of pin status can be detected by a program running on the microcomputer The microcomputer of the Starter Kit can determine the status of pins P25 and P27 from the corresponding values in an I-O port register (PDR2). Register values can be read using instructions of a microcomputer program. In other words, the microcomputer can determine the operation state of a switch by reading the corresponding value from PDR2 by the program. Let us explain some specifications of PDR2. PDR2 is the 8-bit register that indicates the status of port 2 pins (P20 to P27). Figure 3.3 shows the association of the pins at port 2 with the bits of PDR2. When a pin is at the high level, the corresponding bit is 1; when the pin is at the low level, the bit is 0. Therefore, the status of pin P25, or the operation state of SW1, can be known when the value of the bit 5 of PDR2 is read. Similarly, the operation state of SW2 can be known when the bit 7 of PDR2 is read.



Figure 3.3 Outline of PDR2 and DDR2 registers (conceptual diagram)

When using port 2 pins, you must specify whether they are used for input or they are used for output. DDR2 is the 8-bit register to switch the signal direction (between input and output) of each pin at port 2. The association of the bits of DDR2 with the pins at port 2 is as shown in Figure 3.3. To use a pin for output, 1 should be written to the corresponding bit of DDR2; to use the pin for input, 0 should be written to the corresponding bit of DDR2. Here, P25 and P27 are used as input pins to input signals from SW1 and SW2. Therefore, 0 should be written to the bits 5 and 7 of DDR2.

The above explanation can be summarized into the following processes to detect the switch state by a microcomputer program:

- (1) Write '0' to DDR2 bits 5 and 7, and set port 2 pins P25 and P27 to input mode.
- (2) Read the values of PDR2 bits 5 and 7.

- When the read value is '0,' the switch can be determined to be in the on state.
- When the read value is '1,' the switch can be determined to be in the off state.

3.2 How to create and execute a program to control LEDs by switch operation

This section explains how to create a program to detect the switch operation state. The program also controls LED operation to enable you to visually know that the switch operation state is detected. The program applies the method of turning on the LED described in the previous chapter.

#### 3.2.1 Outline of program to be created

The operation of the program to be created is as described below. Figure 3.4 is the flow of the program that performs the operation.

- (1) When SW1 is pressed, LED1 is turned on.
- (2) While SW1 is in the on state, LED1 is kept lighting.
- (3) When SW1 is released (set to off), LED1 is turned off.
- (4) Similarly, LED2 is turned on and off according to the SW2 state.



Figure 3.4 Flow of program

© Fujitsu

This program first sets the output pins for the LEDs, and then sets the input pins for the switches. The necessity of these settings was explained in the previous section. The program subsequently reads the value of the bit 5 of PDR2 to detect the state of SW1. The program turns on or off LED1 according to the read value. To turn on and off LED1, the program writes 0 or 1, respectively, to the bit 0 of PDR1. Also for SW2, the program performs the similar processing and controls LED2.

### 3.2.2 Creating and executing of program

Let us now create the actual program. According to the procedure described in Appendix A.1, open the source file "main.c" stored in "sample.prj", and input the program portion enclosed by dotted line in Figure 3.5. Use the files other than "main.c" without modification. After the input of the program, build the program according to the procedure described in Appendix A.2. If an error message is output, check that the content of the input program is exactly the same as the description shown in Figure 3.5. When the build operation ends successfully, ACCEMIC MDE starts automatically. After the ACCEMIC MDE window appears, execute the program and check its operation. For how to execute the program, see Appendix A.3. After executing the program, press SW1 or SW2. If LED1 or LED2 goes on, the program operation is correct.



Figure 3.5 Sample program code (main routine)

Descriptions "IO\_XXX.byte" and "IO\_YYY.bit" included in the above program code are the convenient formats of description defined in the I-O header file. For further information, see Appendix B.1.

# 4 "Let's try to sound a buzzer!"

Our daily life is full of sounds. Many of them are not natural sounds but artificial sounds that give us signals, draw our attention to something, and give us information. The loud sound of the alarm clock wakes us up every morning. The cooking timer buzzer sounds to let us know when to stop boiling eggs for our favorite softness of yolk. We are surrounded and given much information by artificial sounds varied in loudness and tone, including those of microwave ovens, level crossing alarms, and automobile horns.

Microcomputers are often used to produce these artificial sounds. A microcomputer can be used to control the timing, tone, and pitch of a sound. This chapter explains how to control a buzzer sound simply by using microcomputer functions.

## 4.1 Devices used for buzzer

Before explaining the mechanism of a buzzer, this section describes the piezoelectric device that is used for a buzzer.

A piezoelectric device is a circuit element that uses a piezoelectric effect. The piezoelectric device incorporates a substance characterized by the piezoelectric effect (which causes a voltage when an impact or pressure is applied) or the inverse piezoelectric effect (which causes a crystalline distortion when a voltage is applied).

A quartz oscillator is a familiar example of piezoelectric device that uses the piezoelectric characteristics. The buzzer to be controlled by the microcomputer of the Starter Kit incorporates this piezoelectric device. Piezoelectric devices are also used for piezoelectric loudspeakers, crystal earphones, vibration sensors, and microphones.



4.1.1 Crystalline characteristics of piezoelectric device

A piezoelectric device uses a substance that has a polarization characteristic.

Some crystals have an electrical deflection as an inherent characteristic. This characteristic is called "polarization," and the crystal having this characteristic is called a "polarized crystal." More specifically, the polarized crystal contains polarized molecules as shown in Figure 4.1.

In the figure, the direction of polarization is represented by the green arrow indicating the direction from the positive (+) pole to the negative (-) pole.



Figure 4.1 Polarization of molecules and crystal

### 4.1.2 Piezoelectric characteristics

As shown in Figure 4.2, a crystal sometimes has a characteristic that expands the crystal when a voltage is applied in the direction of polarization (direction of green arrow). This characteristic is called the piezoelectric effect. When a piezoelectric crystal is given a voltage in the reverse direction of polarization (reverse direction of green arrow), the crystal contracts.



Figure 4.2 Piezoelectric crystal

## 4.1.3 Principle of piezoelectric device

When an AC voltage is applied across a piezoelectric crystal, the crystal contracts or expands alternately each time the direction of current is reversed as shown in Figure 4.3. The cycle of contraction and expansion changes when the frequency of AC voltage is varied. This characteristic can be used to vibrate the crystal at various frequencies. If the vibrational energy of the crystal is large, the crystal can generate an aerial vibration, which makes a sound. Piezoelectric buzzers use this principle.



Figure 4.3 Principle of piezoelectric device

# 4.2 Microcomputer and piezoelectric buzzer

A piezoelectric buzzer uses a piezoelectric device as described above. To produce a sound from the piezoelectric buzzer, you should apply a changing voltage, e.g., AC or pulse voltage, to the buzzer. Here, let's sound a piezoelectric buzzer by using a pulse wave (pulse voltage) output from the microcomputer.



Figure 4.4 Buzzer using a piezoelectric device

# 4.2.1 Self-excited and separately excited vibrations

Buzzers are classified into two types. One type, called a self-excited buzzer, generates only one sound by the self-resonance of the crystal when a voltage is applied. The other type, called a separately excited buzzer, generates different kinds of sound according to the frequency of applied voltage. The self-excited buzzer can generate only one kind of buzzer sound based on the self-resonant frequency of the crystal. The separately excited buzzer can generate the buzzer sound that varies depending on the frequency of applied voltage. Therefore, the separately excited buzzer enables to vary the sound in a wide range of frequencies.

The board of the Starter Kit has a built-in buzzer, the KBS-13BB-4P-2 made by Kyocera Corporation. Since this buzzer is of separately excited type, it can be used to produce various tone colors of sound in principle.



Figure 4.5 buzzer

4.2.2 Pulse wave generated by the microcomputer

The microcomputer can output a pulse wave in several ways. The basic method to output a pulse wave is to use a built-in timer and the setting of H-level and L-level widths. The microcomputer has different built-in timers that can be used for different purposes. Here, use the programmable pulse generator (PPG) timer, which is convenient for pulse output, to output a simple pulse wave for sounding the buzzer.

#### 4.3 How to sound the buzzer by PPG

The programmable pulse generator (PPG) enables you to obtain the output of various widths of pulse from the microcomputer through programming. You can basically output a pulse wave from the microcomputer when you make the following settings on the PPG timer:

- ➢ Setting of L-level and H-level duration
- Setting of PPG count clock

# FUJITSU

The following sections sequentially explain how to use the PPG timer:



Figure 4.6 Cycle of pulse and L-level and H-level duration

To output a pulse wave based on the PPG timer, you should set the duration of L-level and H-level signals as the counts by the PPG timer. For example, when you specify 300 as the count of L-level duration and 500 as the count of H-level duration, the PPG outputs the L-level signal while the PPG timer counts 300 and the H-level signal while the PPG timer counts 500 alternately from the PPG output pin. The counting by the PPG timer is called "PPG counting."

# 4.3.2 PPG count clock

To output a pulse wave based on the PPG timer, you should also set the speed of PPG counting. The PPG count per second (that is, the frequency of PPG counting) is called the "PPG count clock."

The PPG count clock is set on the basis of the CPU clock (internal operating frequency) of the microcomputer. In details, the PPG count clock is set to the divide-by-1, divide-by-2, divide-by-4, divide-by-8, or divide-by-16 (whole, one half, one quarter,...) frequency of the CPU clock.

When the PPG count clock is set, the cycle of pulse set in Item 4.3.1 is determined.

# 4.4 How to create and execute a program to sound the buzzer

Here, let's create a program to actually control the operation of the PPG timer in the microcomputer and sound the buzzer.



4.4.1 Outline of the program to be created

Figure 4.7 Flow of program to sound the buzzer

The following describes the detailed method of PPG setting:

Let's try to make the settings of L-level duration, H-level duration, and PPG count clock as described in Items 4.3.1 and 4.3.2. To make these settings, write values to the registers dedicated to PPG setting in the microcomputer. Writing a value to a register is a programmed operation in by which the value is set in the register according to an instruction.

Here, try to make settings for the output of a 4 kHz pulse wave as an example. To make the setting easier, specify an equal count for L-level and H-level duration, and specify the PPG count clock same as the internal CPU operating frequency. The CPU operating frequency is 2 MHz. Therefore, the counts of L-level and H-level duration should be 250 as shown in Table 4.1.

In addition to the above pulse information, you should make settings to enable PPG pin output and PPG operation. Table 4.1 shows all the necessary register settings.

Setting item	Register for setting (bit) Register name	Value to be set (meaning of setting)
L-level duration	PRLL (bits 0 to 7) PPG reload register (L)	0xFA (Count: 250)
H-level duration	PRLH (bits 0 to 7) PPG reload register (R)	0xFA (Count: 250)
PPG count clock	PPG (bits 0 to 7) PPG count clock selection register	0x00 (Same as internal operating frequency)
Enabling PPG pin output	PPGC (bit 13) PPG operation mode control register	0 (disabling) 1 (enabling)
Enabling PPG operation	PPGC (bit 15) PPG operation mode control register	0 (disabling) 1 (enabling)

Table 4.1Register settings

#### 4.4.2 Creating and executing of program

Let us now create the actual program. According to the procedure described in Appendix A.1, open the source file "main.c" stored in "sample.prj", and input the program portion enclosed by dotted line in the figure below. Use the files other than "main.c" without modification. After the input of the program, build the program according to the procedure described in Appendix A.2. If an error message is output, check that the content of the input program is exactly the same as the description shown in the figure below. When the build operation ends successfully, ACCEMIC MDE starts automatically.

After the ACCEMIC MDE window appears, execute the program and check its operation. For how to execute the program, see Appendix A.3.

The PPG count clock is set to 2 MHz, equal to the CPU operating frequency. The pulse duration count is set to 0xFA (250) for both L and H levels. Therefore, the total count of a cycle is 500, and the pulse wave at 4 kHz will be output. The pulse frequency is calculated as follows:

 $2 \text{ MHz} \div 500 \text{ (count)} = 4 \text{ kHz}$ 

Count per cycle (L-level duration + H-level duration)	Pulse frequency
125	16 kHz
250	8 kHz
500	4 kHz
1000	2 kHz

#### Table 4.2 Correspondence of counts and pulse frequencies (with operating frequency at 2 MHz)

After the PPG pulse output is started by the program and the buzzer starts sounding, the buzzer sound cannot be stopped even when the stop button on the ACCEMIC screen is clicked. This is because the PPG timer continues operation and pulse output is not stopped even when the CPU stops. To stop the buzzer, press the stop button and then reset the microcomputer.



Figure 4.8 Program to sound the buzzer

Descriptions "IO\_XXX.byte" and "IO\_YYY.bit" included in the above program code are the convenient formats of description defined in the I-O header file. For further information, see Appendix B.1.

## 4.4.3 Changing the tone of a buzzer sound

Try to vary the setting of pulse duration to check how the buzzer sound changes. Our audible frequencies are said to range from 20 Hz to 20 kHz. Try to confirm the range of audible frequencies by changing the buzzer sound. Also, the buzzer sound will change when the PPG count clock is varied. Try to find the reason for the change.

# 5 "Let's try to control the LED by interrupt."

A method to detect the switch operation state was described in Chapter 3. There are also other methods to detect switch operation than the one described in Chapter 3. One of the other methods is to use an external interrupt input. This chapter explains how to detect switch operation by using an external interrupt input.

#### 5.1 What is an interrupt?

Let's begin with a brief explanation of interrupts. The word "interrupt" is popularly used in daily life, and the meaning of the word is similar when the word is used in the world of microcomputers. Imagine that you are studying at home on the day before an examination day. You need to focus on study but are disturbed by a telephone call from a friend or an unexpected visitor. The telephone call and visitor are interrupts. The microcomputer terminology names the events like the telephone call and visitor as "interrupt factors" and the handling of such events as "interrupt processing." Of course, the interrupts in the world of microcomputers are not telephone calls and visitors but the on/off operation of a switch, reception of communication data, generation of a timer event, and other various events typical for microcomputers.



Figure 5.1 Cases of interrupt

In the field of microcomputer and embedded system, using interrupts in programs is generally regarded as an efficient programming method. In the real word, you cannot predict when you will receive telephone calls and visitors. You cannot focus on study if you have to often look at the telephone or get the door to check to see if there is a visitor. Therefore, you usually keep concentrating on study and interrupt it only when you receive a telephone call or visitor actually; this is more efficient.

The microcomputer is provided with a mechanism that notifies the microcomputer program of a switch on/off operation, communication data reception, timer event, or the like (corresponding to the telephone call or visitor in the real world) when the event occurs. This mechanism is the interrupt. A program can be efficient when it uses interrupts. The sample program described in Chapter 3 uses a procedure for checking the on/off state of the switches cyclically. However, an interrupt is used in the program, the microcomputer can be notified of a switch on/off operation by the interrupt when the operation occurs. Therefore, the processing to cyclically check the on/off state of the switches can be eliminated, and the efficiency of the program can be increased thereby. This chapter explains how to detect switch operation by using an interrupt and how to create the program for the operation.

#### 5.2 How to detect a switch operation by interrupts

As described in Chapter 3, the board of the Starter Kit has two switches that are connected to pins P25 and P27 of the microcomputer. Pins P25 and P27 connecting the switches were used as input ports in the program example described in Chapter 3. These pins can be used also as external interrupt input pins (INT5 and INT7). The following describes how to detect switch operation (pressing of a switch) by using an external interrupt input.

Figure 5.2 shows an outline of SW1 connection circuit on the board of the Starter Kit. SW1 is connected to pin INT5 of the microcomputer as shown in Figure 5.2. While SW1 is released (in the off state), the voltage at pin INT5 of the microcomputer is Vcc (5 V), and the signal input to pin INT7 is at the high level. When SW1 is pressed (in the on state), the voltage at pin INT5 becomes the GND level, and the signal input to pin IN5 changes from the high level to the low level. When SW1 is released subsequently, the signal input to pin INT5 changes from the low level to the high level. When the external interrupt function of pin INT5 of the microcomputer is used, an interrupt can be generated when the pin status is changed. In short, this mechanism enables the microcomputer to be informed of switch operation by the interrupt. SW2 can be handled in a similar way to handle SW1. Because SW2 is connected to pin INT7 of the microcomputer, an external interrupt is generated at pin INT7 when SW2 is operated.



Figure 5.2 Connection of SW1 to microcomputer pin (conceptual diagram)

Explained next is the procedure for using pin INT5 as an external interrupt pin. To use pin INT5 for the input of external interrupt, you should set the I-O direction of the pin to input by using the port 2 register "DDR2." Handling of DDR2 was described in Chapter 3. Write '0' to the bit 5 of DDR2. You should also set necessary values in external interrupt registers "EIRR," "ENIR," and "ELVR" for using pin INT5 as the external interrupt input pin. EIRR is an 8-bit register that indicates external interrupt factors. ENIR is an 8-bit register that enables and disables external interrupts. ELVR is a 16-bit register that specifies the conditions for external interrupt detection.

Assume the processing to detect the SW1 operation from the off state to the on state by using an interrupt. When SW1 is pressed, the signal input to pin INT5 changes from the high level to the low level (as described before). When values are set in external interrupt registers in steps (1) to (4) below, the external interrupt function enables the microcomputer to detect the change (falling edge) of the signal input to pin INT5 from the high level to the low level. In this way, the on operation of SW1 can be detected as the generation of an interrupt.

- (1) Write '0' to the bit 5 of both EIRR and ENIR (to disable the external interrupt via INT5)
- (2) Write '1' to the bits 10 and 11 of ELVR (to generate an external interrupt when a falling edge is detected)
- (3) Write '0' to the bit 13 of both EIRR and ENIR (to clear the INT5 interrupt factor)
- (4) Write '1' to the bit 5 of both EIRR and ENIR (to enable the external interrupt via INT5)

5.3 How to create and execute a program to control the LED by switch Input operation This section explains how to create a program to detect switch operation by an external interrupt. The program is also designed to operate an LED to enable you to visually see the detection of switch operation. The program incorporates the method to turn on an LED explained in Chapter 2.

## 5.3.1 Outline of the program to be created

Let's create a program to better understand the operation of interrupt processing. This program will be very similar in contents to the LED control program created in Chapter 2, except that this program will have an additional portion to process the interrupt generated by switch operation. The main operation by the program is as described

below. Figure 5.3 shows the flow of the program.

- (1) When the program starts, LED1 starts blinking.
- (2) When SW1 is pressed, LED3 goes on.
- (3) Each time SW1 is pressed, LED3 goes off and on alternately.

The main processing by the program begins with the setting of LED output and switch input pins. This setting was described in Chapter 3. Next, the program makes the settings related to the external interrupt and enables the external interrupt. Then, the program makes LED1 be blinking. Blinking of LED1 continues until the stop or reset button is pressed on the ACCEMIC screen. When SW1 is pressed after the external interrupt is enabled, an INT5 interrupt is generated, and an interrupt routine is called. The interrupt routine clears the interrupt factor and switches LED3 between on and off states. In summary, this program makes LED1 blinking processing usually as the main processing, and switches LED3 between the on and off states only when the interrupt is generated by switch operation.





Figure 5.3 Flow of the program
## 5.3.2 Creating and executing of program

Let us now create the actual program. According to the procedure described in Appendix A.1, open the source file "main.c" stored in "sample.prj", and input the program portions enclosed by dotted line in Figure 5.4 and Figure 5.5. Use the files other than "main.c" without modification. After the input of the program, build the program according to the procedure described in Appendix A.2. If an error message is output, check that the content of the input program is correct. When the build operation ends successfully, ACCEMIC MDE starts automatically.

After the ACCEMIC MDE window appears, execute the program and check its operation. For how to execute the program, see Appendix A.3. After the program starts normally, check LED1. LED1 is blinking when the program is operating normally. Also, press SW1 to check for normal interrupt operation. The interrupt operation is normal if LED3 goes on and off alternately each time SW1 is pressed.



Figure 5.4 Sample program code (main routine)



Figure 5.5 Sample program code (interrupt routine)

The ext\_int function is called when the external interrupt (INT5) is generated. If you program the above operation without using this sample project, you should register the interrupt routine in the vector table so that the ext\_int function will be called when the external interrupt (INT5) is generated. You need not perform the registration when you use this sample project in which the interrupt routine has already been registered. Descriptions "IO\_XXX.byte" and "IO\_YYY.bit" included in the above program code are the convenient formats of description defined in the I-O header file. For further information, see Appendix B.1.

# 6 "Let's blink the LED by using a timer interrupt."

The procedure for controlling the LED blinking is described in Item 2.5 in Chapter2. There are some other methods to control the LED blinking other than the method described in Chapter 2. One of them is the method using a "timer interrupt." This chapter describes the method to control the LED blinking by using a 16-bit reload timer.

## 6.1 What is a timer?

Let's begin with a brief explanation of the "timer." The word "timer" is often heard in daily life, such as a recording timer of VCR, a start timer or sleep timer of the audio system, a kitchen timer for cooking, or the timer function of an alarm clock. The function of the timer contained in the microcomputer is the same as those timers. Let's take the alarm clock timer as an example to explain the timer function. Most of the people set the alarm clock timer for a certain time and wake up at the sound of the alarm every morning. What would happen if there was no alarm timer function? People would be bothered about the time to wake up once the dawn breaks and could not keep relaxing and sleeping. People can re-realize that the timer function of the alarm clock allows us to sleep tight until the time to get up.

The microcomputer has the timer interrupt function that performs as an alarm timer function. In this case, the timer interrupt is used for the LED-on time count and the LED-off time count. Because the LED blinking control described in Item 2.5 in Chapter2 counts the LED-on time and LED-off time by executing the CPU instruction, the CPU is always required to perform the processing for controlling the LED blinking. Figure 6-1 **LED blinking processing without using the timer interrupt** shows the LED blinking processing without using the timer interrupt. This figure shows that the CPU must always control the LED and there is no time for other processing.



Figure 6-1 LED blinking processing without using the timer interrupt

When a timer is used, the timer can take the processing of counting the LED-on and -off time that is described in Figure 6-1 so that the CPU does not have to count the LED-on and -off time. The CPU can perform processing other than the LED blinking control accordingly.

Figure 6-2 shows the LED blinking processing with using the timer.



Figure 6-2 LED blinking processing with using the timer

To use the timer to count the LED-on and -off time, the count clock and the number of the counts need to be specified. The LED-on and -off time can be calculated by using the following expression. Using the timer, as just described, has the advantage of enabling the accurate time count.

LED-on and -off time period = count clock cycle × number of counts

6.2 How to create and execute a program to control the LED blinking by using a timer interrupt

This section explains how to create a program to control the LED blinking by using a timer interrupt. The 16-bit reload timer is used for the timer of this program.

# 6.2.1 Outline of the program to be created

In Chapter 2, the LED blinking time is controlled by a WAIT of the loop processing. In this section, a program that uses the 16-bit reload timer interrupt to count the LED blinking time is created. The LED operation of this program is the same as that of the program created in Chapter 2. However, as the operation of the microcomputer, the 16-bit reload timer instead of the CPU is used for counting the LED-on and -off time. The CPU is not required for counting the LED-on and -off time.

Figure 6-3 Flow of the program shows the flow of the program.



Figure 6-3 Flow of the program

The program created in this section goes into an infinite loop (No. 12 in the flow of the program) after a sequence of the processing. During this infinite loop processing, the CPU can execute any processing other then the LED processing. Table 6-1 **Register setting of 16-bit reload timer** shows the register of the 16-bit reload timer that is set in the program created in this section. Suppose the LED-on and -off time is one second. The value to be set for the counter of the 16-bit reload timer can be calculated by using the following expression accordingly.

LED -on and -off time period = Count clock cycle (16  $\mu$ s) × Number of counts (62500) = 1 s

Setting item	Register name Setting bit	Setting value (meaning)
Timer count value	TMRLR register D0 to D15 (bit0 to bit15)	$0 \times F424$ (62500 counts)
Timer count clock	TMCSR0 register CSL0, CSL1(bit10, bit11)	10 (count clock cycle: 16 $\mu$ s) <sup>*</sup>
Timer count repeat	TMCSR0 register RELD (bit4)	0 (Timer stops at an interrupt generation.) 1 (Timer count is reset at an interrupt generation and the operation continues.)
Timer interrupt permission	TMCSR0 register INTE (bit3)	0 (Timer interrupt permitted) 1 (Timer interrupt not permitted)
Timer interrupt factor	TMCSR0 register UF (bit2)	0 (There is no timer interrupt factor.) 1 (There is a timer interrupt factor.)
Timer operation permission	TMCSR0 register CNTE (bit1)	0 (Not permitted) 1 (Permitted)
Timer software start	TMCSR0 register TRG (bit0)	0 (No effect) 1 (Start)

Table 6-1 Register setting of 16-bit reload timer

\* Count clock cycle (16  $\mu$ s) = 32 / Internal operation frequency (2 MHz)

#### 6.2.2 Creation and execution of the program

Let us now create the actual program. According to the procedure described in Appendix A.1, open the source file "main.c" in sample.prj and input the program that is the circled part in Figure 6-4 **Example of program code (main routine)** and Figure 6-5 **Example of program code (interrupt routine)**. Use all files except main.c without any changes. After the program is input, "build" the program according to the procedure described in Appendix A.2.

If an error is output, reconfirm that the program accords to the contents of Figure 6-4 **Example of program code (main routine)** and Figure 6-5 **Example of program code (interrupt routine)**. When the "build" is succeeded, "ACCEMIC MDE" starts automatically.

When the "ACCEMIC MDE" window appears, execute the program and check the operation. For the procedure of the program execution, see Appendix A.3. When the program starts correctly, check LED5. Blinking LED5 indicates the normal operation.



Figure 6-4 Example of program code (main routine)



Figure 6-5 Example of program code (interrupt routine)

The reload\_int function in Figure 6-5 **Example of program code (interrupt routine)** is to be executed when an interrupt of the 16-bit reload timer is generated. It is normally required to register the interrupt routine on the vector table so that the reload\_int function is executed when an interrupt of the 16-bit reload timer is generated. In this sample project, however, it has already been registered, so it can be used without registration. In the above code, there are some expressions such as "IO\_XXX.byte" and "IO\_YYY.bit".

These are the useful description formats, which are defined in the IO header file. For more information, see the Appendix.

# 7 "Let's use the A/D converter."

This section describes the processing to convert the analog signals input to the microcomputer into the digital signals by using the A/D converter and to load the digital signals into the microcomputer.

This Starter Kit can control the value of the voltage applied to the analog pin for the A/D converter by using the volume tab mounted on the board. Let's input the analog signal to the microcomputer by using this tab. The input analog signal can be converted into the digital signal by the A/D converter and processed by the microcomputer.



Figure 7-1 Adjustment of applied voltage with volume tab

## 7.1 Analog and Digital

Do you know the difference between analog and digital? Those are explained as follows in a dictionary.

Table 7.1	Analog and digital
-----------	--------------------

	Definition in a dictionary			
Analog	Expressing states of a material or system according			
Analog	to its physical quantity that varies continuously			
Digital	Expressing states of a material or system according			
Digital	to discrete signals such as numbers or characters			

Although you read the above definitions, you may have a hard time picturing them. Intuitively speaking, initially, everything is in analog value. At the moment a person tries to determine the size or variety of the analog value, the quantity becomes digital value. In other words, a digital value exists only when an analog value exists. A digital value is what an analog value is divided into some levels for easier handling and converted to easier understandable form.

Figure 7-2 **Low accurate digital conversion** shows an example of analog and digital signals. The blue line indicates an analog signal, and the black line indicates a digital signal. The digital signal in this figure is a low accurate A/D conversion result.



Figure 7-2 Low accurate digital conversion

#### 7.1.1 Outline of A/D converter

A digital value is a value into which an analog value is divided according to a standard based on a certain rule. The A/D converter is mounted on the microcomputer to perform this conversion. For this conversion, the important factor is resolution. This resolution is, like the resolution of photograph, a scale of how small the analog value is to be resolved and converted to the digital value. For example, a school record that is evaluated on a scale of one to five can be a poor accurate digital value. In contrast, a school record that is evaluated on full mark of a 1000-point scale can be a highly accurate digital value.

The microcomputer mounted on this Starter Kit contains the A/D converter that has 10-bit resolution (8-bit resolution is also available). Having the 10-bit resolution means that it can resolve an analog value into  $2^{10}$ , or 1024, levels to convert it to a digital value (with 8-bit resolution, the value is resolved into  $2^8$ , or 256, levels). The higher the resolution is, the more highly the A/D conversion can be accurate. The following shows the 1-bit voltage accuracy (at 5 V) with 10-bit resolution and 8-bit resolution.

1-bit voltage accuracy (at 5 V)

10-bit resolution: 5 V/1024 = approximately 0.00488 V
8-bit resolution: 5 V/256 = approximately 0.01953 V

7.1.2 Scheme of volume tab

**Figure 7-3** Variable resistor shows the symbol of a variable resistor. The volume is the variable resistor that you use in an experiment in a science class. This Starter Kit uses the circuit configuration shown in

**Figure 7-4 Peripheral circuitry of voltage adjustment**. By using this tab, the voltage is changed and applied to the target pin of the A/D conversion. The applied voltage is digitized into 1024 levels so that it can be used as an internal signal.



Figure 7-3 Variable resistor



Figure 7-4 Peripheral circuitry of voltage adjustment tab

## 7.2 How to create and execute a program to display potental

Let's create a program to display the potential based on the contents so far. Input the adjusted voltage, convert the analog signal to digital, and obtain the digital value. Also, light the LED to display the potential.

# 7.2.1 Outline of program to be created

Let us now create the actual program. The contents of the program are to use the A/D converter to digitalize the potential of the applied voltage and to determine the number of LEDs to be lighted according to the potential. The main operation of the program is described below. The flow of the program is shown in Figure 7-5 Flow of the program .

- (1) Perform initialization (such as initial settings of the A/D converter).
- (2) Start the A/D conversion (to obtain the applied voltage by using the A/D converter).
- (3) The A/D conversion is completed. (The A/D converted values are obtained.)
- (4) Light the LEDs according to the obtained A/D converted values. (Determine the number of LEDs to be lighted.)
- (5) Then, repeat (2) to (4).

First, in the program, set up the output pin of the LED and the input pin to be used for the A/D converter. Then, make the settings regarding the A/D converter operations such as the sampling time of the A/D conversion, operation mode, and A/D input channels. In this section, the sampling time is set to  $128/\phi$ , the comparing time is set to  $176/\phi$ , the resolution is set to 8-bit, and the A/D conversion channel to be used is set to Ch0 only, and the operation mode is set to the continuous conversion mode. " $\phi$ " indicates the internal operation frequency of the microcomputer. Table 7.2 **Register settings of A/D converter** shows the values to be written to the register for the settings.

Item	Register (bit)	Setting value (contents)
A/D conversion started	ADCS: H (bit 9)	1 (A/D conversion started)
A/D interrupt permission	ADCS:H (bit 13)	1 (permitted), 0 (not permitted)
A/D interrupt factor	ADCS: H (bit 14)	0 (factor cleared)
cleared		
A/D conversion stopped	ADCS:H (bit 15)	0 (A/D conversion is forcibly
		stopped)
A/D conversion end Ch	ADCS: L (bits 0 to 2)	0 (Select Ch0)
A/D conversion start Ch	ADCS: L (bits 3 to 5)	0 (Select Ch0)
A/D conversion mode	ADCS: L (bits 6 to 7)	2 (Continuous conversion mode)
setting		
Comparing time selection	ADCR: H (bits 11 to 12)	3 (176/\$)
Sampling time selection	ADCR: H (bits 13 to 14)	3 (128/φφ)
A/D resolution selection	ADCR: H (bit 15)	1 (8-bit resolution)
Analog input permission	ADER (bits 0 to 7)	01h (Input permitted from Ch0
		only)

Table 7.2 Register settings of A/D converter

- \*The sampling time includes the time for loading the A/D input voltage after
  - the A/D conversion starts.
- \*The comparing time is the time to perform comparison operations of the sampled A/D voltage and the standard voltage of the A/D converter and to convert it to a digital value.

After that, permit interruptions of A/D converter. This is the end of the operation settings of the A/D converter. Start the A/D conversion. In this program, the operation mode of the A/D converter is set to the continuous conversion mode. The operation of the A/D converter is as follows accordingly.

# A/D converter is activated (A/D conversion starts) $\Rightarrow$ A/D conversion ends $\Rightarrow$ A/D conversion starts - - -

The operation repeats as shown above. When the A/D conversion ends, an interrupt of the A/D converter is generated, and an interrupt routine is called. In the interrupt routine, the interrupt factor is cleared, the A/D value is obtained, and the LEDs are lighted according to the obtained A/D value, which is the volume size. The correspondence between the volume size and the number of LEDs lighted is as shown in Table 7.3 LED lighting according to volume .

Applied voltage	Obtained A/D value	LED lighting
0 to 0.83 V	0 to 43	No LED is on.
0.83 to 1.67 V	43 to 85	LED1 is on.
1.67 to 2.50 V	85 to 128	LEDs 1 to 2 are on.
2.50 to 3.33 V	128 to 171	LEDs 1 to 3 are on.
3.33 to 4.17 V	171 to 213	LEDs 1 to 4 are on.
4.17 to 5.00 V	213 to 255	All LEDs are on.

Table 7.3 LED lighting according to volume level



Interrupt occurs by A/D conversion end

Figure 7-5 Flow of the program

## 7.2.2 Creation and execution of the program

Let us now create the actual program. According to the procedure described in Appendix A.1, open the source file "main.c" in the "sample.prj," and input the program that is the circled part in Figures A.1 and A.1. Use all files except main.c without any changes. After the program is input, "build" the program according to the procedure described in Appendix A.2. If an error is output, reconfirm that the program accords to the contents of Figure 6-4 **Example of program code (main routine)** and Figure 6-4 **Example of program code (main routine)** and Figure 6-4 **Example of program code (main routine)**. When the "build" is succeeded, "ACCEMIC MDE" starts automatically.

When the "ACCEMIC MDE" window appears, execute the program and check the operation. For the procedure of the program execution, see Appendix A.3. When the program starts correctly, check the operation. It can be confirmed that the LEDs 1 to 5 are lighted according to the size of the applied voltage that has been adjusted on the volume.



Figure 7-6 Example of program code (main routine)



Figure 7-7 Example of program code (interrupt routine)

The ADC\_int function is to be executed when an interrupt of the A/D converter is generated. It is generally required to register the interrupt routine on the vector table so that the ADC\_int function is executed when an interrupt of the A/D converter is generated. In this sample project, however, it has already been registered, so it can be used without the registration.

In the above code, there are some expressions such as "IO\_XXX.byte" or "IO\_YYY.bit." These are the useful description formats, which are defined in the IO header file. For more information, see the Appendix.

# 8 "Let's use the temperature sensor."

Most of the microcomputer application systems contain various sensors to detect the external information. There are various sensors for different purposes and requirements, and one of those various sensors is the temperature sensor. The temperature sensor is, as its name suggests, a sensor to detect changes in temperature. Examples of what the temperature sensor is used for include the temperature control features of air conditioners and refrigerators. In this way, various sensor s are used for household appliances.

This Starter Kit contains the temperature sensor. This chapter describes how to detect temperature by using this temperature sensor.

# 8.1 What is a temperature sensor?

The temperature sensor is a sensor to detect temperature changes. Simply stated it is a thermometer to measure temperature. There are various methods to measure temperature. One of those methods uses a mercurial thermometer, and another one uses a radiation thermometer that enables contactless measurement. Table 8.1 **Temperature measuring method** shows the general methods for measuring temperature. Of course it depends on the purposes or requirements, however, most of the systems containing microcomputers use the thermocouple thermometer or thermistor. This Starter Kit also uses the thermistor as its temperature sensor.

Category	Method and its feature				
Mercurial/alcohol	This method uses thermal expansion of mercury or alcohol to detect				
thermometer	temperature. This method is used for many thermometers and				
	clinical thermometers.				
Thermocouple	This sensor uses the Seebek effect. It contains the two-contact				
thermometer	circuit using two different metals, and when there is a difference in				
	temperature between two contact points, it generates thermal				
	electromotive force. It can measure the wide-range temperature.				
Thermistor	This sensor uses the resistance thermometer bulb that uses the				
	temperature characteristic of semiconductor. It is in heavy usage.				
Radiation	The infrared energy emitted by an object varies with temperature.				
thermometer	The radiation thermometer uses this principle for measuring				
	temperature. It enables contactless measurement.				

Table 8.1 Temperature measuring method



The thermistor is the resistor using the temperature characteristic of semiconductor. The resistance value of the temperature sensor varies with temperature. This Starter Kit contains the TDK's NTC thermistor (NTCG164BH103) for its temperature sensor. NTC stands for Negative Temperature Coefficient, and this thermistor has negative characteristic of the resistance value, which is reduced as the temperature rises. This section describes the concrete method of detecting temperature by using this temperature sensor.



Figure 8-1 Temperature sensor (NTCG164BH103)

#### 8.2 How to detect temperatures by using "temperature sensor"

To use the temperature sensor and detect temperature, it is necessary to understand the specifications of the sensor. The specifications of the sensor to be used (NTCG164BH103) can be confirmed on the sensor data sheet, which is issued from the manufacturer. The data sheet of the temperature sensor contains the information required for measurement. For this time, the relationship between the measured temperature and the state of the sensor (resistance value) is especially important. According to the data sheet, the relationship between the temperature from 5 to 50 °C and the resistances are shown in Table 8.2 **Relationship between measured temperature of NTCG164BH103**.

Table 8.2 Relationship between measured temperature and resistance of NTCG164BH103

Temperature[°C]	Resistance value[k $\Omega$ ]	Temperature[°C]	Resistance value[k $\Omega$ ]	
5	26.250	30	7.997	
10	20.390	35	6.437	
15	15.960	40	5.213	
20	12.590	45	4.248	
25	10.000	50	3.481	

#### Figure 8-2 Peripheral circuit diagram of "temperature sensor" (image)

shows the peripheral circuit diagram of the "temperature sensor" on the Starter Kit board. In this circuit, when the resistance of the "temperature sensor" changes, the input voltage of the A/D converter of the microcomputer also changes. Suppose the resistance of the "temperature sensor" is  $R_{TH}$ . Then, the input voltage of the A/D converter  $V_{ANI}$  can be calculated by using the following formula. (The necessary knowledge to calculate it is only Ohm's law.)



Figure 8-2 Peripheral circuit diagram of "temperature sensor" (image)

[Input voltage of the A/D converter]

According to the Ohm's law, the current in the circuit *I* is as shown below:

$$I = \frac{V_{CC}}{R + R_{TH}}$$

Therefore,  $V_{ANI}$  is

$$V_{AN1} = R_{TH} \times I = \frac{R_{TH} \times V_{CC}}{R + R_{TH}}$$



Because  $R=10[k\Omega]$  and Vcc=5.0[V],

the input voltage to the A/D converter  $V_{ANI}[V]$  can be obtained by using the following formula.

$$V_{AN1} = \frac{5.0 \times R_{TH}}{10000 + R_{TH}}$$

Table 8.3 Relationship between the measured temperature of Starter Kit and A/D input voltage summarizes the relationship between the measured temperature from 5 to 50  $^{\circ}$ C and

the input voltage of the A/D converter. By measuring the input voltage of the A/D converter, the temperature can be known accordingly.

Temperature [°C]	A/D input voltage:	Temperature [°C]	A/D input voltage:	
	$V_{ANI}[\mathbf{V}]$		$V_{ANI}[\mathbf{V}]$	
5	3.62	30	2.22	
10	3.35	35	1.96	
15	3.07	40	1.71	
20	2.79	45	1.49	
25	2.50	50	1.29	

Table 8.3 Relationship between the measured temperature of Starter Kit and A/D input voltage

#### 8.3 How to create and execute a program to display temperature

The following section explains how to create a program to detect temperature by using the sensor. For how to use the A/D converter, apply the contents of the previous chapter. For checking the detected temperature visually, the lighting of the AD input LED is controlled.

## 8.3.1 Outline of the program to be created

Let us now create the actual program. The contents of the program are to use the A/D converter to obtain the temperature information of the sensor, and to control the lighting of the LED (to change the lighting pattern) according to the obtained value. For processing related to the A/D converter, create the program based on the program of the volume control A/D converter that is created in the previous chapter. The main operation of the program is described below. The flow of the program is shown in Figure 8-3 Flow of the program

- (1) After the program is started, performs the initialization (such as initial settings of the A/D converter).
- (2) Starts A/D conversion (to obtain the sensor information using the A/D converter).
- (3) The A/D conversion is completed. (The A/D converted values are obtained.)
- (4) According to the obtained A/D converted values, controls the LED lighting.
- (5) Then, repeat (2) to (4).

In the flow of the main processing of the program, first set up the output pin of the LED and the input pin to be used for the A/D converter. The settings of the pins are explained in the previous chapter. Then, make the settings related to the A/D converter. The settings to be made are about the same as the previous chapter. The only difference is that the channel of the A/D converter to be used is set to "1" (Channel 0 is used in the previous chapter). The operation mode of the A/D converter is set to the continuous conversion mode that is also used in the previous chapter. The operation of the A/D converter is as follows accordingly.

# A/D converter is activated (A/D conversion starts) $\Rightarrow$ A/D conversion ends $\Rightarrow$ A/D conversion starts - - -

When the A/D conversion ends, an interrupt of the A/D converter is generated, and an interrupt routine is called. In the interrupt routine, the interrupt factor is cleared, the A/D value is obtained, and the LEDs are lighted according to the obtained A/D value. The LED lighting processing is as shown in Table 8.4 LED lighting processing.

Obtained A/D value	LED lighting	Remarks		
0 to 65		50 °C or higher		
	All LEDs are on.			
66 to 86		40 °C or higher but lower than 50 °C		
	LEDs 1 to 4 are on.			
87 to 112		30 °C or higher but lower than 40 °C		
	LEDs 1 to 3 are on.			
113 to 141		20 °C or higher but lower than 30 °C		
	LEDs 1 to 2 are on.			
142 to 170		10 °C or higher but lower than 20 °C		
	LED 1 is on.			
171 to 255		Lower than 10 °C		
	No LED is on.			

Table 8.4 LED lighting processing



Interrupt occurs by A/D conversion end

Figure 8-3 Flow of the program

#### 8.3.2 Creation and execution of the program

Let us now create the actual program. According to the procedure described in Appendix A.1, open the source file "main.c" in "sample.prj," and input the program that is the circled part in Figure 8-4 **Example of program code (main routine)** 

## and Figure 8-5 Example of program code (interrupt routine)

Use all files except main.c without any changes. After the program is input, "build" the program according to the procedure described in Appendix A.2. If an error is output, reconfirm that the contents of the program are correct. When the "build" is successful, "ACCEMIC MDE" starts automatically.

When the "ACCEMIC MDE" window appears, execute the program and check the operation. For the procedure of the program execution, see Appendix A.3. When the program starts correctly, check the LEDs. When the temperature of the room where the operation is performed is between 10 and 20 °C, LED 1 and LED 2 are supposed to be on. The number of LEDs lighted varies with the temperature detected by the sensor. For example, warm up the sensor part using your fingers. When warming up the peripheral part of the sensor, be aware of the temperature. When it gets hot, it may damage the board.



Figure 8-4 Example of program code (main routine)



Figure 8-5 Example of program code (interrupt routine)

The ADC\_int function is to be executed when an interrupt of the A/D converter is generated. It is normally required to register the interrupt routine on the vector table so that the ADC\_int function is executed when an interrupt of the A/D converter is generated. In this sample project, however, it has already been registered, so it can be used without registration.

In the above code, there are expressions such as "IO\_XXX.byte" or "IO\_YYY.bit." These are the useful description formats, which are defined in the IO header file. For more information, see the Appendix.

# A Appendix (Program Creation Procedure)

# A.1 Program Creation Procedure

This appendix explains the procedure you should follow when creating an actual program. First, start up SOFTUNE as instructed in Item 1.1.5, "Starting and setting up of SOFTUNE," (pages 15 to 17), and open the Start\_kit.wsp file. Use the sample project provided for easy creation of software.

To use the sample project, select "Sample.prj" in the list, right-click to open a submenu, and select 'Set active project' from the submenu. Then, the string including "Sample.prj" is displayed in boldface in the list, and debugging of the sample project is enabled.

i	SOFTUNE Workbench - Start_kit	
	<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>P</u> roject <u>D</u> ebug <u>S</u> etup <u>W</u> ind	ow <u>H</u> elp
		🕼 🖉 🛗 🕌 👗 🛛 Sample
	D 🛩 🖬 🗴 🖿 🖬 🕷 🛤	NA <u>AA</u> 🖬 🖬 🗛 AA
	<ul> <li>Workspace'Start_kit'</li> <li>LED.abs - "LED.prj" [Debug]</li> <li>Input.abs - "Input.prj" [Debug]</li> <li>Buzzer.abs - "Buzzer.prj" [Debug]</li> <li>Volume.abs - "Volume.prj" [Debug]</li> <li>Therrupt.abs - "timer.prj" [Debug]</li> <li>Interrupt.abs - "Interrupt.prj" [Debug]</li> <li>Secondary - Sensor pri" [Debug]</li> <li>Sample.abs - "Sample.prj" [Debus]</li> <li>Sample project</li> </ul>	Set active project Create new folder Add Member to project Set Project Set Linkage order Make Build
		Executing linker or librarian
		Delete Project
		Property
		Open List File   Open HEX File

Click on "Sample.prj" to show the list of folders below. Click on "main.c" under the Source Files folder to open the main.c file.



After the main.c file is opened, create your program in the section indicated by the red dotted line below.



If another program has already been input to the main.c file, delete the lines from the above program list section enclosed by the red dotted line before creating your new program. If you need to save the already input program, perform the procedure below to save the program as a backup file before deleting the program.



#### <Program (source file) backup procedure>

While editing a source file, select 'Save As...(A)' from the File menu.

È	SOFTUN	E Workbenc	h - StartJ	kit – [ma	ain.c]					
	<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u>	dit <u>V</u> iew	<u>P</u> roject	<u>D</u> ebug	<u>S</u> etup	₩in	dow	<u>H</u> elp		
	<u>N</u> ew Open. <u>C</u> lose	 1	G	rl+O	a și 8 <b>8</b>		21 1	¢ (ی) م	*   ##   X [ =   =	Samp
F	Open Close	Wo <u>r</u> kspace. Workspace			1	ţ				
	<u>S</u> ave. Save Save	<u>A</u> s A <u>l</u> I	G	rl+S	2 3 4	/** /** /**	ACCI кжжж	THIS EPTS ****	SAMPLE NO RES ******	CODE PONSIB *****
	<u>P</u> rint. R <u>e</u> cei Recei	nt Text File n <u>t</u> Workspac	e File	•	5 6 7 8	* * *	Date PRO Pro: CPU	e JECT: gram		2005 Samp Fuji EMC-
	E <u>x</u> it	FF C main R star Include Depend	MC16.C n.c t905s.asm Files encies		9 10 11 12 13 14 15	* * /** #inc #inc	Vec Inc Outr kxxxx clude	,f lude: put **** e ~_t e ~_e	: кжжжжж ffmc16. xtern.h	Vcc= f16f ffmc P10~ ******* h~~↓

The dialog box below appears. Select Text file, and then click 'OK.'

Save as	×
Eiletype: Text file Output Window Project file : Sample.prj	OK Cancel

Next, the dialog box below appears. Select the folder to save the program in the Save in field, specify the file name in the File name field, and then click 'Save.'

Save As			? ×
Save jn: 🔂	sample	💌 🗈 💆	📸 🔳
File <u>n</u> ame:	main_old.cl		<u>S</u> ave
Save as type:	All Files (*.*)	•	Cancel

💒 SOFTUNE Workbench – Start_kit – [main.c]					
🚍 File Edit View Project Bebug Setup Window Help					
EPPP E E E E E E A E A Name of the saved file					
Sample	- Debug	-	(main_old.c) is		
🕞 🔂 Workspace'Start kit'			displayed.		
🗄 🖻 LED.abs - "LED.prj" [Debue	1 ↓				
🗄 🖻 Input.abs – "Input.prj" [Debi	2 /**	THIS SAMPLE	COLE		
🗈 🖺 Buzzer.abs – "Buzzer.prj" [[	3 /**	ACCEPTS NO RES	PONSIB		
🔃 🔛 Volume.abs - "Volume.prj"	4 /**	okokokokokokokokokokoko	kolokokok		
⊞ 🔛 timer.abs – "timer.prj" [Deb	5 *	Date :	2005		
🗈 🗳 Interrupt.abs – "Interrupt.prj	6 🗶	PROJECT:	Samp		
🔛 🔤 sensor.abs – "sensor.prj" [l	7 *	Program:	Fuj i		
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	8 *	CPU :	FMC-		
🗄 🔤 Sample.abs – Sample.t	9 *	Vcc.f :	Voc=		
	10 *	Include:	1		
	11 ×	Output :	T		
	12 /10		* ***		
A monitor16LXasm	12		des des des des des		
A start905s.asm	14 #:	lude "ffm=10	_ "		
🛁 Include Files		lude _ttmclo.	Ψ ″		
	i5  <b>⊞in</b> o	luae extern.h	<b>₩</b>		

The saved file is still displayed. Close the displayed file.

After closing the saved file, find the original file name of the saved file ("main\_old.c in this example) in the Source Files folder under "Sample.prj" in the list, and then click on the original file name to open the file. In this status, you can edit the source file.

# A.2 Program Building Procedure

After creating a program, confirm that the board is connected to the personal computer by the USB cable, and then start the procedure to build the program.



If no error is found in the created program, ACCEMIC MDE starts automatically and displays the information shown below for 10 s. This information is displayed only by the trial version of ACCEMIC MDE (not displayed by the product version). An 'OK' button appears 10 s later. Click the OK button.



If an error is found in the created program, the error is indicated as shown below. Correct the indicated error, and perform 'building' again.



# A.3 Program Execution Method

Execute the created program and check that it performs the intended operation. After ACCEMIC MDE has started, the window as shown below appears:



Use the buttons shown below to control the program.

Function	Button	Operation (when clicked)
Continuous		Starts and runs the program continuously.
execution		
Stop	1	Stops the running program.
Reset	C	Resets the microcomputer.

Downloaded from Elcodis.com electronic components distributor

# **B** Appendix (Method To Write/Read Values in Registers)

### B.1 About the Method To Write/Read Values in Registers

The sample program codes presented in this document include such descriptions as "IO\_XXX.byte" and "IO\_YYY.bit". These are the convenient formats of description <u>defined in the I-O header file</u>. You can use these description formats after setting up Softune Workbench, the development environment provided by the Starter Kit.

An actual C-language program contains the descriptions of instructions to write values to various registers to specify microcomputer operation. The above description formats enable you to write values to registers in C language. For example, assume the instruction to write 0xff to the port 1 data register (PDR1), which is allocated at address 0x000001. The instruction is described in C language as follows:

\*((volatile char \*)0x000001) = 0xFF;

It is not immediately obvious what kind of processing the above description specifies. If you use one of the description formats defined in the I-O header file, you can write the same instruction as follows:

IO\_PDR1.byte = 0xff;

You can use this description because the following operation is defined in a separate file:

Substituting a value for variable "IO\_PDR1.byte" = Writing the value to PDR1 register at address 0x000001

It is now immediately clear that the description specifies the processing to write 0xff to the PDR1 register. The I-O header file contains the definitions of these description formats for the registers of the microcomputer built in the Starter Kit.

© Fujitsu

# C Appendix (Method To Change the Include Path)

C.1 About the Method To Change the Include Path

A necessary include path is specified for each sample program.

A sample program requires the specified include path to reference sample I-O register files.

If the installation folder of SOFTUNE or ACCEMIC MDE is changed, change the include path settings of the C compiler and the assembler before using the sample program.



Select "Project setting(J)" under "Project(P)."

Change the include path settings of the C compiler and the assembler as shown below. The following window shows the include path setting of the C compiler.







Select a folder.

Setup Project		×
Target of setting:	General   MCU C Compiler   Assembler   Linker   Librarian   C	< • •
Debug 💌	Category: Include Path 💽 Common Opt	ion
B-LEDpr; B-	Include Path: am Files¥AccemicMDE2 Include Path List: Add Delete Up Down C:¥Softune¥Iib¥907¥include¥sample¥MB90385 C¥Program Files¥AccemicMDE2_2SK¥Samples¥16LX¥Commoni	Click the Add button to add the selected include path.
	▲ Option:	After setting, click the OK button.
	Ter −w 1 -I″C¥Softune¥lib¥907¥include¥sample¥MB90385″ -I″C¥Program	
	OK Cancel App	ly l
	1	

Use the same procedure for setting the include path of the assembler.

Setup Project		Select this tab for setting	
Target of setting:	General   MCU   C Compiler Assembler	the include path of the	
EDDeptig	Category: Include Path 💽 🖸	assembler.	
⊕ <b>⊑</b> Input.prj ⊕ <b>⊑</b> Buzzer.prj	Include Path:		
i⊞⊷ 🔛 Volume.prj i⊞⊷ 🖺 timer.prj	am Files¥AccemicMDE2_2SK¥Samples¥16LX¥CommonInclude		
🗄 📲 Interrupt.prj	Include Path List: Add Delete Up	Down	
C#Program Files#AccemicMDE2_2SK#Samples#16LX#CommonInclu			
⊞⊶ 🔛 Sample.prj			
		<b>F</b>	
	Option:		
	-g -w 2	<u> </u>	
	Files#AccemicMDE2_2SK#Samples#16LX#CommonInc	lude"	
·	OK Cancel	Арріу	